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ON THE COVER: NEW GENERAL AVIATION TERMINAL BUILDING

Demolition and construction of a new general aviation building for the Marshfield Municipal Airport, Roy Shwery Field was
completed in 2007, This 4,600 square foot building was built to replace the existing building constructed in the 1940°s as a
garage. It will allow for more general public use with a lobby designed for extended viewing areas as well as a conference
room for meetings and classroom instruction. The building also includes a quite room for pilots separate from general public
access. Construction of this $1.6 million building was primarily funded by Federal and State grants.
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Keith R. Strey, CPA
Finance Director
Telephone (715) 387-3033
Fax (715) 384-9310
Email:keiths@ci.marshfield.wi.us -

Finance Department

City of Marshfield

City Hall Plaza

630 S. Central Avenue
Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449-0727
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June 15, 2007

To the Honorable Mayor, members of the Common Council and the Citizens of the City of Marshfield:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Marshfield for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, is hereby submitted.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of Marshfield. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and refiability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable
basis for making these representations, management of the City of Marshfield has established a comprehensive intermal control
framework. It is designed both to protect the government's assats from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of financial statements in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement because the cost of internal controls should not exceed their benefits. As management, we assert that,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants has audited the City of Marshfield's financial
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the city for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Marshfield’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007, are faitly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative iniroduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in
the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmitial is designed to complement MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it. The Gity of Marshfield’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Marshfield was incorporated in 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Laws of Wisconsin, 1883, Marshfield is one of four
major cities in the Central Wisconsin area, being located in the exact center of the state. Hence, Marshfield is known as the 'City in the
Center". The city currently has a land area of 13.3 square miles. It is a city rich in Wisconsin lore, with lumbering, rich farmlands and
railroading dominating its earlier history.

An elected Mayor and Common Council under a mayor-council form of government govern the City. Common Council members serve
two-year staggered terms, with five members elected every year. The Mayor is elected to serve a two-year term. All ten of the Common
Councit members are elected by district and the Mayor elected at large. The Common Council meets in regular session twice monthly and

~ performs the legislative and policy making functions of city government. By statute, the Mayor presides at Council meetings and serves as
the Chief Elected Officer. Since 1989, administrative functions of city government have been delegated to a City Administrator who is hired
by and reports to the Mayor and Common Coungil,




Under an organizational plan approved in 1989, the City Administrator is responsible for certain departments including Finance,
Information Technology, Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Planning and Economic Development. The City Administrator annually
prepares and presents an executive budget recommendation to the Mayor and Common Council. In 1990, a 5-year Capifal Improvement
Program (CIP) policy statement was adopted by the Common Council and a 5-year Capital Improvement Program has been subsequently
adopted every year.

With an estimated 2007 population of 19,420, the city has seen a slight decline in population and significant growth in its tax base over the
past decade. Inthe 1990 publication, The Rating Guide To Life In America’s Small Cities, Marshfield was ranked 14th in America, 3rd in
the Midwest and 1st in Wisconsin for its quality of life. Each community was graded on its performance in ten clearly defined
classifications: Climate/Environment, Diversions, Economics, Education, Sophistication, Health Care, Housing, Public Safety,
Transportation and Urban Proximity. In addition, Marshfield was recently named as the 8 best place to live in America by Demographics
Daily.

The city employs 197 full-time equivalent employees. The police department has 38 officers and 15 staff employees. The Marshfield Fire
and Rescue Department that employs 33 firefighters and one staff employee provide fire protection. The fire insurance rating is class 4.

The city provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; sanitation services; construction and maintenance of
highways, streets and other infrastructure; planning and economic development; and library, recreational activities and cultural events.
Also included are activities of the Board of Water and Light Commissicners, Fire and Police Commission, Library Board, and smaller
boards and commissions over which the Common Council exercises, or has the ability to exercise direct administrative authority and/or
responsibility.

_The annual budget serves as the foundafion for the City of Marshfield’s financial ptanning and control. All departments of the City of
Marshfield are required to submit budget requests for the following fiscal year to the Finance Department by the first Friday of August. The
Finance Department performs a technical review of all requests, then compiles and prepares the initial budget as a starting point for the
City Administrator by the last week of August. The first full week of September, the City Administrator and Finance Director hold budget
hearings with Departments fo review budget requests with Department heads. The City Administrator then prepares and presents a
proposed budget to the Common Council at the first regular Common Council meeting in Ociober.

A serigs of three special budget work sessions of the Common Council are held to review the Administrator’s recommended budget prior to
publication of the Common Council proposed budget. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and adopts
a final budget by the last Common Council meeting in November. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and
department (e.g., police). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department with the exception of capital
outlay. Transfers of appropriations between departments or capital outlay, however, require the special approval of the Common Council.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget
has been adopted.

Factors Affeciing Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the broader perspective of the
specific environment within which the City of Marshfield operates.

Economic Condition and Outlook: The Marshfield family of industries is best described as diversified with 63 manufacturing firms
employing 6,100 employees, 13 industrial distribution firms employing 750, 4 transport firms employing 2,300, 26 utility, communication,
and printing firms employing 415, and medical service firms employing 6,038.

The Marshfield Clinic, founded in 1918, is Wisconsin's most comprehensive health care system with over 730 physicians and medical
specialists, serving patients in Marshfield and more than 40 regional centers throughout central, westérn, eastern and northerm Wisconsin.
Marshfield Clinic system employs over 5,600 (exclusive of physicians).




Saint Joseph's Hospital, a 500-plus bed tertiary care teaching institution which adjoins the Clinic, is one of the largest rural referral medical
centers in Wisconsin, and the only verified frauma center in the north central part of the state. It provides health care, including all major
medical and surgical specialties and subspecialties, to a sefvice area including Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. Among Saint Joseph’s
specialties are oncology and cardiac services. In 2007, it was awarded the recognition of “children’s hospital.

Marshfield Clinic Research Foundation has grown into the largest private medical research institute in the state and among the largest in
the nation. Over 500 clinical trials and other research projects are active in the system at any time. These studies provide knowledge o
the medical community across the United States and around the world.

Marshfield Clinic Laboratories is one of the largest full-service private practice medical laborafories in the nation with approximately 20
million test results reported annually. The laboratory employs over 450 people and has established separate service fines for forensic
toxicology, food safety and veterinary medicine. Marshfield Clinic Laboratories serves clients across the nation.

In addition to Marshfield being a major medical service center, the focus of the manufactured housing industry in the state, and the home
for manufactured wood products, the city is also a strong metalworking and machinery center, especially stainless steel products.
Marshfield is known for its dairy food processing, most notably for its cheese. One unique business is Figi's Inc., a mail order cheese,
sausage, gift firm which employs over 3,000 during the October-December peak gift period.

The overall Marshfield-Wood County area economy experienced improvement over the past twelve months. Total Wood County
unemployment rate for 2007 decreased from 2005 at 4.8%. This does not correspond to what is occurring in elsewhere as the region and
state are increasing and the nation as a whole is decreasing. The total number of unemployment claims in Wood County increased from
1,290 claims in 2006 to 1,349 claims in 2007, an increase of 4.6%. Total Wood County employment increased in 2007 with an estimated
Total Nonfarm increase of 3.7%. Sectors experiencing employment growth were Trade, Transportation & Utilities, Education & Health
Services and Government. The sectors experiencing reductions in 2007 were Manufacturing and Trade and Financial Activities.

Marshfield’s businesses continued to grow in 2007 with the addition of 10 new commercial and industrial buildings valued at $3,344,820.
Additionally, 116 businesses remodeled andfor expanded existing facilities valued at $10,490,170. The cify experienced a decrease in
residential housing starts from 21 in 2006 to 12 in 2007 valued at $3,672,000.

The city is positioned to experience increased development as improvements were finished fo State Highway 13 on the north end of the
city in 2006, completion of the new Veteran's Parkway (Marshfield Boulevard) in 2003, completion of infrastructure construction in Mil
Creek Business Park in 2003, scheduled development of Yellowstone Industrial Park starting in 2007 and completion of the U.S. Highway
10 expansion to four-lanes from Stevens Point to Marshfield by 2013. '

Retirement Program: All efigible City of Marshfield employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). Additional details regarding this are presented in Note 10 -
Defined Benefit Pension Plans in the Notes to Financial Statements,

Debt Adminisiration: During the year, the city issued $7,910,000 of general obligation notes and $3,120,000 of morigage revenue bonds
to fund various public purpose capital projects and refinance existing debt to reduce interest costs. As of December 31, 2007, the city had
23 debt issues outstanding. These issues included $25,865,227 of general obligation bonds, notes and land contracts and $25,965,227 of
-mortgage revenue bonds. The city has continually maintained its “Aa3 rating from Moody's Investors Service on general obligation debt
issues and its electric morigage revenue bond issues and an "A" rating on its mortgage revenue bond issues.

Under Wisconsin statutés, general obligation debt is subject o a legal limitation based on 5% of total equalized value of real and personal
praperty. As of December 31, 2007, the city's net general obligation debt of $25,865,227 was well below the legal limit of $62,008,575.
Net bonded debt per capita equaled $1,330. The city adheres to an aggressive repayment policy.




Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, government agencies, corporate bonds, and
the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool. The average yield on investments ranged from 4.16% to 5.25%. The city and
its proprietary funds earned interest revenue of $1,357,201 on all investments for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The city's investment policy is fo minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its porffolio. Accordingly, it is
the city's policy that deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. For brief periods of ime certain amounts
were not collateralized pending transfer to the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool, All collateral on deposits was held
either by the city, our agent or a financial institution's trust department in the city's name.

Remaining investments were held in long-term securities in accordance with State Statutes and the cify’s investment policy adopted in
2001. During 2007 the city maintained long-term investments of $3,988,836 long-term government agency securities of varying maturity
dates with interast rates between 3.88% and 4.75% with an emphasis on safety, liquidity and yield on the funds invested.

Risk Management: The City of Marshfield is a member of the League of Wisconsin Municipalities insurance Plan, This plan provides

~ workers' compensation, casualty, professional liability and errors and omissions coverage tailored specifically for Wisconsin municipalities.
The City is also 2 member of the Wl Local Govemnment Property Insurance Fund program for property coverage needs for Wisconsin
municipalities.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Cerificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporiing to the City of Marshfield for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2008. This was the twelfth consecutive year that the City of Marshfield Finance Department has received this prestigious award. [n
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for another certificate.

| would fike to acknowledge the City Administrator, city depariments and all others who assisted and coniributed to the preparation of this
report. Also, | would like to thank our independent auditors, Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company for their assistance and professional
guidance, which contributed significantiy to the report quality and adherence to accounting standards. Their experience and expertise was
extremely valuable to the Finance department,

Finally, I would like to acknowledge and express my sincere appreciation to the entire staff of the Finance Depariment for their outstanding
work throughout the year, Without their support, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,
Heitk A

Keith R. Strey, CPA
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Common Council
s City of Marshfield, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmentat activities, the business-type activities, each major fund -
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin ("City”), as of and for the year ended December 31,

+2007, which coflectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements
are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test bass, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Marshtield, Wisconsin as of December 31, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated July 15, 2008, on our consideration of the City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with ceriain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit,

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 13 through 19 and 52 through 53 are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
L4 the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coflectively comprise the Gity of Marshfield,
Wisconsin’s basic financial statements. The infroductory section, other supplementary information, combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nenmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

P, o, foupbic € Comppany, LLP

Marshfield, Wisconsin
July 15, 2008

L ' -12 -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin, we offer readers of the City of Marshfield's basic financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial aclivities of the City of Marshfield for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2007. We encaurage
readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City's basic financial
statlements, which follow this narrative. '

Firancial Highlights

» The assets of the Cify of Marshfield exceeded ifs liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $127,805,130 {net assets).

» The government's total nef assets increased by $7,705,460, with both governmental and business-type activities increasing net
assets, :

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Marshfield’s governmental funds reported combined ending furd balances of
$10,020,074 an increase of $421,722 in comparison with the prior year. The increase is primarily due to issuance of debt for
2008 capital projects in December 2007 and unexpended funds budgeted for 2007 operations.

o Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $6,569,455, or 36 percent of total
general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

QOverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infroduction fo City of Marshfield's basic financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the Gily through the use of
government-wide statements and fund financial staterments. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Analysis Financial
Statements
Government-wide Financial Fund ) Notes to the
Statements Financial Financial Statements
Statements
Summary > Detail
- 13 -




Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and
long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City's
government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are three paris to the Fund Financial
Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data
contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided o show details about the City's individual funds.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format
to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
City's financial status as a whole,

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are the difference between the
City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The govemnment-wide statements are divided into iwo categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) business-type acfivities. The
governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water, communications, sewer, ambulance and storm water services offered by
the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin.

Fund Financial Statements .

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts
used to maintain confrol over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin,
like all other governmental entities in Wisconsin, uses fund accounting to ensure and reftect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-
related legal requirements, such as the State of Wisconsin Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of the funds of City of Marshfield,
Wisconsin can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Govemmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as govemmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on
how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in
the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a short-
term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or
her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The relationship between government
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the debt service fund, both of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds {except those for which multi-year project budgets
are approved) as required by the State of Wisconsin Statutes. The budget is a legally adapted document that incorporates input from
citizens of the City, management of the City, and decisfons of the Council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary comparison schedule
provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted
by the council; 2) the final budget as amended by the council; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in
the General Fund; and 4) the variance between the final budget and the actual revenues and expenditures.
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Proprietary Funds - City of Marshfield, Wisconsin has two different kinds of proprietary funds, Enterprise and Internal Service Funds.
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City of Marshfield uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and communications activity, sanitary sewer operations,
ambulance services and storm water activity. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulated and
allocate costs internally among the Gity of Marshfield’s various functions. The City of Marshfield uses internal service funds to account for
its machinery and equipment. Because both of these services predominately benefif governmental rather than businass-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same fype of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for Marshfield Utilities and for the Wastewater Utility, both of which are considered
to be major funds of the City of Marshfield. Conversely, the internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial statements,
as a single column,

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not avaitable to support the
Cily of Marshfield's own programs. The most significant fiduciary fund maintained by the City of Marshfield is the Property Tax Fund which
records the tax roll and tax collections for other taxing jurisdictions within the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. The accounting used for
fidueiary funds is much like that used for governmental funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information — in addition o the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required

supplementary information concerning the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin, Required supplementary information can be found following the
notes to the financial statements.

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Net Assets

Figure 1
{In Thousands of dollars)
Govemnmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current & other assets $ 25162 $ 24801 § 20015 § 214980 § 45177 & 46,291
Capital assets 64,844 61,647 90,246 87,612 155,090 149,259

Total assets 90,006 86,448 110,261 109,102 200,267 185,550
Long-term liabilities outstanding 23,866 25,360 25,664 27,993 49,530 53,353
QOther liabilities 13,611 13,618 9,320 8,479 22,931 22 097

Total liabilities 1 - Y1 38,978 34,984 36,472 72,461 75450
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 40,986 38,518 62,318 56,131 103,304 94,649
Restricted 8,674 5,276 5,814 8,759 14,489 14,035
Unrestricted 2 869 3.676 7,145 7,740 10,013 11,416

Total net assets - $§ 50829 § 47470 $§ 75277 0§ 72830 0§ 127806 $ 120,100

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets of the City of
Marshfield exceeded liabilities by $127,805,130 as of December 31, 2007. The City's net assets increased by $7,705,460 for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007. The largest portion (80%) reflects the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, land improvements,
buildings, and equipment), less any related debt still cutstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City of Marshfield uses these
capital assets fo provide services fo citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of
Marshfield’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related deb, the resources needed to repay that debt must
be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional $14,488,583 of the City of
Marshfield’s net assets (12%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of $10,013,183 is unrestricted.
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City of Marshfield, Wisconsin Changes in Net Assets )
o
Figure 2
(In Thousands of doflars)
Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,852 § 1610 § 37113 § 32770 § 38965 $§ 34,380
Grants & contributions 5375 3,416 729 2,687 6,104 6,103
General revenues: ' '
Taxes 12,404 12,243 - - 12,404 12,243
State shared revenue 5,796 5,677 - - 5,796 5,677
Interest and investment income 654 564 1,162 1,007 1,816 1,571 )
Miscellaneous 171 109 - - 171 109 i
Total revenues 26252 §__ 23619 39.004 36,464 65,256 £0.083
Expenses: r}
General government 3,004 2,838 - - 3,004 2,838
Public safsty 7,118 7,049 - - 7,119 7,049
Public works 7,140 6,563 - - 7,140 6,563 1
Health and human services 150 145 - - 150 145 P
Culture, recreation & education 3,064 3,153 - - 3,064 3,153
Conservation & development 742 806 - - 742 806 -
Interest on long-term debt 046 1,057 - - 946 1,057 : 1
. Electric - - 28,000 23,155 28,000 23,155 i
Water - - 2,627 2,244 2,527 2,244
Wastewater - - 3,618 3,524 3,618 3,524
Other business-type activities - - 883 805 883 805 E
Total expenses - 22522 21,611 35,028 29,728 57,550 51,339
Excess {deficiency} before transfers 3,730 2,008 3,976 6,736 7,706 8,744 é
Transfers 1,329 1,386 (1,329) (1,386) - -
-
Change in net assets 5,059 3,394 2,647 5,350 7,706 8,744 ! ‘
Net assets, beginning of year 47,470 44,076 72,630 67,280 120,100 111,356 .
Net assets, end of year $ 52529 § 47470 § 75277 $ 72630 § 127806 $ 120.100 [
Figure 2 provides summarized operating results and their impact on net assts. Both governmental and business-type activities mcreased (g j:

the City's financial position.

Governmental activities: The City relies primarily on taxes (approximately 50%) and state shared revenue (approximately 25%) to ' !
provide basic services. Revenues were generally at similar levels, Public safety (approximately 33%) and public works (approximately

30%) comprise the majority of expenses. Expenses were generally consistent, with decreases in public safety and interest. This decrease
is the result of the transfer of Public Fire Protection (Fire Hydrant) to the Water Utility bills {included as govemmental expense for 2006). -

Business-type activities: Wholesale slectric power costs are passed along fo electric customers as a component of their bill. This
recovery resulted in an increase in revenue, and coupled with lower operafing expenses, increased the excess of revenue over expenses
by approximately $1 million. Customer contributions increased by almost $2 million for customer-financed capital additions, and there was
no property tax levied for business-type activities for 2007,
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Marshfield’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Marshfield’s financing requirements, Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a goverment's net resources avaitable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $6,687,867 while total fund balance was $7,104,358. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 36 percent of fotal General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 38 percent of that same amount.

At December 31, 2007, the governmental funds of City of Marshfield reported a combined fund balance of $10,020,074 an increase of
$421,722 from last year. The increase is attributable to issuance of $1,855,000 in debt in December 2007 for 2008 capital projects and
unexpended funds budgeted for 2007 operations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several accasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendmenis made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once more accurate information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources,

- such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services or cover unanticipated

expenses. There were no significant budget amendments during the year.

Overall revenues were higher ($519,000) than budgeted amounts primarily because of Intergovernmental ($213,000) and public charges

.. for services ($160,000) exceeding budgeted expectations. Other excess revenues offset revenue budget shortfalls. Overall expenditures

were less than budgeted {$437,000) due to actual and incurred costs being less than esiimated for budgeting puposes. The City had

| -anticipated using fund balance (or having a deficit) of about $683,000 for 2007, but instead had excess revenue of $280,000.

. Proprietary Funds. The City of Marshfield’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide-
““statements but in more detail. Information on enterprise fund net assats follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets Change in Net Assets

2007 2008 2007 2006
Marshfield Utilities $ 4,797,430 $ 5,099,861 $ 1,978211 $ 4,600,557
Wastewater 2,063,901 2,375,288 533,906 746,881
EMS 278,975 274,325 120,989 12,453

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's

- business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business—type activities as of
December 31, 2007, totals $155,090,161 {net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, land improvements, buildings,
construction in progress, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset fransactions during the year include the following additions (there were no significant demolitions or disposals):

+  Airport terminal building.

s  Fifth Street reconstruction (Oak to Adams).

»  Vine Avenue reconstruction and storm sewer (Mill Creek to 17t),
+  Prairie Run construction.
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City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Capital Assets
Figure 3
{In Thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities ‘ Activities Total
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2008
Land and fand improvements 3 7,950 § 7,953 § 1,880 $ 1,548 $ 89830 $ 9,501
Buildings and improvements 18,922 16,854 28,008 27,290 46,928 44,144
Machinery and equipment 14,010 13,716 8,275 8,105 22,285 21,821
Infrastructure/systems 54,197 51,458 85,484 80,092 139,681 131,550
Improvemnents other than buildings 2,361 2,074 - - 2,361 2,074
Construction in progress 156 359 1,753 2,862 1,909 3,221
Less: Accumutated depreciation (32,752) {30.767) {35,152) {32,246) {67.904) (63,013)
TOTAL $ 64,844 § 61.647 § 90.246 § B7651 § 155000 § 140298

Additional information on the Cify's capital assets dan be found in the notes to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements, Note 5 -
Capital Assets.

Long-term Obligations. As of December 31, 2007 the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin had total long-term obligations outstanding of
$52,546,218. Of this, $24,335,000 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of thie City. The remainder of the City's debt represents
mortgage revenue bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. revenue bonds) and compensated absences,

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Outstanding Long-Term Obligations

Figure 4

(In Thousands of dolfars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities ___ Activities Total
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
General obligation bonds/notes ~ § 23,583 § 25094 § 752 § 718 24,335 § 25,865
Mortgage revenue bonds - - 24,019 25,966 24,019 25,966
Other long-term obligations 283 266 - 41 283 307
TOTAL $ 23866 § 25360 § 24771 § 26,778 § 48,637 $ 72,138

The Gity of Marshfield, Wisconsin's total debt increased by $3,500,000 (6.7%} during the past fiscal year. This was due to the issuance of
$1.855 million in new debt less scheduled principal payments of $5.315 million during the year.

The State of Wisconsin statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue 1o 5 percent of total
equalized value of taxable property located within that government’s boundaries. The legal debt limit for City of Marshfield, Wisconsin is
$64,137,780.

Additional information regarding the City of Marshfield's Iong term debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements, Note 7 -
. Leases and Note 8 - Long-Term Obligations.
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Economic Factors And Next Year's Budgets And Rates

During 2004, the city considered formation of a Storm Water Utility for implementation in 20086, but elected not o do so. Effective
November 1, 2006, the City of Marshfield was under a storm water discharge permit from the Wi Department of Natural Resources that
outiines standards the city is required to meet, with specific compliance deadlines for 2008 and 2013. Once this permit was received, the
city completed an analysis in 2007 to determine the amount of infrastructure improvements and other costs necessary to comply with these
regulatory deadlines. The overall projected budgetary impact through 2013 is $2.5 million, consisting primarily of capital improvements.

For 2008, the city budgeted the issuance of $1,855,000 in general obligation debt for the city’s 2008 capital projects, of which $1,855,000
was issued in Becember 2007, '

The 2008 adopted General Fund budget is $19.74 million, an increase of 2.25% over the 2007 revised budget of $19.30 million. The
overall 2008 adopted budget for alf funds is $35.42 million, a decrease of 1.92% under the 2007 revised budget for all funds of $36.11
million. Property taxes levied in 2007 for 2008 city purposes increased by $105,138. The tax rate for city purposes in 2007 for 2008
decreased from $9.20 to 9.87.

During 2007, significant projects inciuding the residential portion of phase | of the new mixed-use Prairie Run Subdivision with an
estimated value of $1.18 million, construction of a $800,000 new mixed use multi-tenant commercial development on the norih side of the
city and development of a $650,000 Intergenerational Daycare Facility near Marshfield Senior High School were completed. In 2006,
construction began on the Melvin Laird Building for Medical Research on the Marshfield Clinic campus at an estimated cost of $36.6 million
that is expected to be completed in fall 2008.

Marshfield Clinic aiso began expansion of the Ambulatory Surgery building constructed in 2002 by two floors. This estimated $14 million
expansion brings its total square footage to 81,736 and is scheduled to be completed in summer 2008. In late 2007, work started on an
esfimated $5 million warehouse and production facility for Felker Brothers Corporation. The scheduled completion date for this project is
summer 2008.

*~ Work began in December 2007 to amend Tax Incremental Financing District #7 (Yellowstone Industrial Park) as part of discussions on a

potential development agreement for adjoining property totaling 88.1 acres of privately developed industrial park land. The proposed

. amendment was for the purpose of providing the developer incentive payment when a parcel is sold, a building constructed and permit for

occupancy issued.

Work began in December 2007 to amend Tax Incremental Financing District #8 (Shoppes at Woodridge) as part of discussions on a
potential development agreement for adjoining property totaiing 5.97 acres. The proposed amendment was for the purpose of construction
of a new extended stay motel, restaurant, and commercial office space with an estimated total value of $9 million and a scheduled start in
summer 2008,

The City applied with the W| Public Service Commission (PSC) for approval to construct and own a new electric generating unit; the M-1
combustion turbine. The primary purpose for the M-1 generation facility with an expected 55 MW capacity is to 1) further reduce
Marshiield’s future demand-related electric costs; 2) hedge future energy-related electric costs; and 3) increase the reliability of electric
sarvice in Marshfield’s service territory and in Eastern WI. Pending PSC approval for construction, the City anticipates issuing $30 million
in long-term electric system revenue bonds to finance the project with a scheduled late 2008 start.

fn 2005, as part of the State of Wi biennial budget process, the State of Wl imposed a two-year property tax levy limit on all Wi
municipafifies. The State of Wi approved a two-year extension of the property tax levy limit in 2007. This tax levy limit impacted the City of

Marshfield 2006, 2007 and 2008 budgets. - For 2008, the city was eligible to increase its tax levy by 3.86% over 2007. The 2008 adopted
budget increased the tax levy by 0.94%

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the
information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director, City of Marshfield, P.O.
Box 727, Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449. '
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

'3 STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
- DECEMBER 31, 2007
i BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE _
- ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL :
ji ASSETS
Cash and equivalents . $ 12,315,881 § 4231212 § 16,547,093
Investments 99,632 4,223,879 4,323,511
. j Receivables
Taxes 9,187,973 47,759 9,235,732
- Accounts . 101,212 3,067,658 3,168,870
! Special assessments ' 847,536 2,719 844,817
e Loans 1,136,481 .- 1,136,481
' ; Other 2,806 -- 2,806
{ I Inventories 58474 974,864 1,029,338
Prepaids 128,132 12,674 140,806
r Deferred charges ' - 920,388 920,388
| J Due from other governments 2824711 - A 290,692
- Internal balances 1,005,000 (1,005,000) -
- Restricted assets
} Cash and invesiments - 7,535,379 7,535,379
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
r Land and construction in progress - 8,106,348 3,632,441 11,738,789
' Buildings, systems and equipment 56,737,524 86,613,848 143,351,372
L _ _
-
i
! TOTAL ASSETS ' 3 90005470 § 110,260,604 $ 200,266,074
B}
— (Continued on page 21)
I
i
|
L]
)
.L,J
1
B
B The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable
Bond anticipation notes
Accrued interest
Other accrued expenses
Payable from restricted assets
Current portion of long-term deht
Other
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
NONGURRENT LIABILITIES
Due within one year
Customer deposits
Noncurrent portion of [eng-term obligations
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of refated debt
Restricted for

Special revenue funds

Capital projects

Debt service

Perpetual care - nonexpendabie
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued

DECEMBER 31,2007

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$ 979,905 $ 2,857,129 § 3,837,034
3,910,000 3,910,000
233,925 92,876 326,801
23,853 2,326,635 2,350,488
135,715 1,551,012 1,686,727
131,866 131,866
7,605 - 7,605
12,366,252 1,250 12,367,502
3,410,815 520,000 3,990,815
893,429 893,429
20,318,892 22,639,785 42 958 677
37,476,962 34,983,982 72,460,944
40,985,589 62,317,775 103,303,364
2,124,190 2,124,190
4,475,450 4,475,450
1,887,738 5,814,338 7,702,076
186,867 186,867
2,863,674 7,144,509 10,013,183
52,528,508 75,276,622 127,805,130

$ 90.005.470 $___110,260.604 § 200,266,074

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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; CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
o ~ STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

A PROGRAM REVENUES

. OPERATING CAPITAL
] CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
i - EXPENSES ___SERVICES  _ CONTRIBUTIONS _ CONTRIBUTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES :
1 General government 3 3,003,721 § 718,777 § - §
Lo Public safsty _ 7,139,830 315,359 243,834
Public works 7,140,678 249,416 4,526,910
] Health and human services 150,081 137,203 -- -
. - Gulture, recreation and education 3,400,317 304,686 604,425 -
Conservation and development 742,530 66,176 -
ol Debt service
L) Interest and fiscal charges 945,708 - -
* TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 22,522,265 1,851,617 5,375,169
‘[ i l - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
| Electric ' 28,000,226 28,623,244 352,635
i [1 Water 2,526,510 3,026,993 323913
L Communications 24,702 56,570 -
o - Wastewater 3,618,360 4,482 341 -
b EMS : 853,601 924,049 52,521
TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 35,028,399 3713197 729,069
{l TOTAL $ 57,550,664 § 38964814 6,104,238 $ --

General revenues
' f} _ Property taxes
Public accomodation taxes
_ _ Other taxes and payments in lieu of tax
H ' Unrestricted state shared revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings
) Miscellaneous revenues
[ ] Transfers
) _ . Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - heginning of year
] : _ - Net assets - end of year

(Continued on page 23)

’ } The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

$  (2.228.90) (2,220,904
(6,580,637) (6,580,637)
(2,363,752) (2,363,752)
(12,878) (12,878)
(2,491,206) (2,491,206)
(676,354) (676,354)
(945,708) (345,708)
(15.295,479) (15.295,479)

$ 975,653 975,653

824,3% 824,3%

31,868 31,868

863,981 863,981

117,969 117.969

2.813,867 2813867

(15,295,479) 2813867 (12481,612)

11,983,483 11,983,483

298,206 208,206
121,963 121,963

5,796,398 5,796,398

654,187 1,161,950 1,816,137

170,885 170,385

1329331 (1,329.331) -

20,354,453 (167.381) 20,187.072
5,058,974 2,606,486 7,705,460 -

47 469,534 7263013 120,099,670

$ 52,528,508 $ 75,276,622 §  127,805.130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

-924 .-

OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
, GENERAL -~ SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS _
Cash and equivalents 3 5036826 § 2,558,054 § 4,243,962 $ 11,838,842
Receivables '
Taxes 5,909,863 1,894,820 1,383,290 9,187,973
Accounts 105,415 - - 105,415
- Special assessments 847,536 - 847,536
Loans - 1,040,747 1,040,747
Other - 2,806 2,806
Prepaids 118,412 9,720 128,132
Due from other governments 93,673 186,177 279,850
Due from other funds 4,676,833 2,51 4,629,344
TOTAL ASSETS $ 16738558 % 44528743 6,869,213 § 28,060,645
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES -
Accounts payable $ 730,444 § -3 193,603 $ 924,047
Due to .
Other funds 17,402 3,615,840 3,633,242
QOther governments 7,371 - 234 7,605
- Deferred revenues 8,878,983 2,965,136 2,031,558 13,475,677
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,634,200 2,565,136 5,841,235 18,040,571
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Special revenue 2,045,555 2,045,555
Capital projects - 520,315 520,815
Deht service - 1,887,738 - 1,887,738
Other activities 118,412 - 196,537 314,999
Unreserved, designated 416,491 - 416,491
Special revenue - 782,356 782,896
Capital projects -- 739,459 739,459
Unreserved, undesignated 6,569,425 -- 6,569,455
. Special revenue ' .- (839) (839)
Capital projects -- - (3.256,495) {3,256,495)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 7,104,358 1,887,738 1,027,978 10,020,074
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 16738558 % 4.452.874% 6,869,213 § 28,060,645




: CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Fund balances - iotal governmental funds $ 10,020,074 -
Amounts reported for govermmental activiies in the statement of assets are different because:

Net capital asssts used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reporied in the funds. 62,616,608 1

Some revenues are deferred in the funds because they are not available : L
to pay current period's expenditures 1,100,425

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet machinery and I
equipment to individual funds. The assets, liabilities and net assets of the internal service :
fund are included with govemmental activities on the statement of net assats. 2,358,928

Long-term liabifities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. Interest on iong-term debt is not accrued in govemmental 7
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. Al liabilities —both i

- current and long-term — are reported in the statement of net assets. J

Accrued interest payable $ (233925 P
Bonds and notes payable (23,059,899) E
Compensated absences : (282 703} (23,576,527 L

3
E
E
z
:
3
:
:
:
:
t

Total net asseis of governmental activities - ' $  52.528,508 {1

oy
H ]
S |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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3 : CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

' he STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES

o GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS : '

- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Lo :

- OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL
} REVENUE GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
- ‘Taxes $ 7,744,885 $ 2,589,981 § 2,069,245 § 1240411
. Special assessments 416,277 - 416,277
] Intergovernmental reventies 7,916,249 - 1362690 9,778,939
Licenses and permits 206,673 - 179,674 386,347
N Fines, forfeits and penalties 134,092 - - 134,082
i Charges for services 877,105 . 130,962 1,008,067
- Other revenue ' 984,140 53,564 1,182,353 2,220,057
o TOTAL REVENUES : 18,279,421 2,643,545 5,424,924 26,347,890
L EXPENDITURES

- Current ‘

: ] General government o 2,742,938 - 143,521 2,886,509
Public safety 6,300,138 - 91,466 6,891,604
- Public works ' 5,416,012 -- 317,315 5,733,327
} Health and human services 149,944 - - 149,944
B = Culture, recreation and education 2,811,302 - ' 206,543 3,057,845
e B Conservation and development 434,049 -- 237,597 721,646
| j = (apital outlay ‘ 31,788 -- 5,222,037 5,533,825
o ‘Debt service ' '

. Principal retirement ) - 3,202,824 -- 3,202,824
j E interest and fiscal charges -- 912,053 20,922 932,975
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,716,221 4114877 6,279,401 29,110,499
( } " EXCESS OF REVENUES QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {436,800 . (1.471,332) (854.477) (2,762,609)
— OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

] ssuance of long-term debt - 1,855,000 - 1,855,000
- Transfer from Enterprise Fund 854,331 475,000 - 1,329,331
- Transfers in 10,496 923,240 2,945,164 3,878,900

Jﬁ Transfers ott (147 651) (2,403,675 (1,327,518 (3,878,900)
""" TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 117,176 849,565 1,617,590 3,184,331
£y

_ Jﬁ' NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 280,376 (621,767) 763,113 an iz22
- FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,823,982 2,509,505 264,865 9,598,352
- FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 7004358 § 1,887,738 § 1,027,978 §  10,020.074

‘! The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN -

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

The acquisition of capital assets are reported in the govermnmental funds as expenditures.
However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement of net assets
“and allocated over their estimated usefut lives as annual depreciation expanses in
the statement of activities.
Capital outlay reported in governmental fund statements
Less expenditures not capitalized
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities
Book value of fixed assets disposed of during the year
Amount by which capital cutlays are greater than
depreciation in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellansous transactions involving capital asset
sales, frade-ins, and donations and changes in accrual of revenues that do
not provide current financial resources

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
machinery and equipment to individual funds. The net revenue (loss) of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Some capital assets acquired during the year were financed with loans. The amount of
the loan is reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing. In the statement
of net assets however, loans are not reported as a financing source, but rather constitute a
long-term liability. The amount of loans reported in the governmental funds statement is:

Certain employee benefits are reported in the government funds when amounts are paid.
The statement of activities reports the value of benefits earned during the year.
This year the accrual of these benefits increased by:

Certain revenues are deferred in the governmental funds because they are
not available to pay current pericd expenditures. In the statement of
activiies these are recorded as revenue in the current year:

Special assessments to be collected after year end

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the governmental

funds as an expenditurs, but is repotied as a reduction in long-term debt

in the statement of net assets and doas not affect the statement of activities.
The amount of long-term debt principal payments in the current year is:

In governmental funds interest payments on cutstanding debt are reported as
an expenditure when paid. In the statement of activities interest is reported
as it accrues. _

The amount of interest paid during the current period

The amount of interest accrued during the current period

interest paid is greater (less) than interest accrued by

Change in net assets - governmental activities

$ 5533825
(160,943)
(2,089,371)
(28,801)

932,975

(920.950)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staiements.

.07 -

$ 421,722

3,254,710

@2,377)

102,568

(1,855,000)

(12,694)

(64,804)

3,202,824

12,025

$ 5,058,974




ol CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
; STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
o ' PROPRIETARY FUNDS
o ' . DECEMBER 31, 2007
GOVERNMENTAL
R ' BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
L OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
N — UTILITIES ___ WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND _
i ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 3 2,403,801 § 1,541,177 § 280,234 § 4231212 § 576,671
. 1 Taxes receivable - 47,759 - 47,759 -
Accounts receivable 2,894,799 51,681 121,178 3,067,658
e Special assessments receivable - 2,119 - 2,719
i Prepaid expenses 8,000 1,035 3,639 12,674 --
Due from other funds 26,260 633,374 - 659,634 10,528
; ~ Due from other governments . 8,221 - 8221 2,621
P Restricted assets, cash and investments 4,436,489 3,098,890 . - 7,535,379 --
Inventories ' 874,120 100,744 - 974,864 H 474
{ TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,643,469 5,486,162 405,051 16,534,682 644,294
NONCURRENT ASSETS
f] Deferred charges 920,388 - - 920,388
L. Investments 4,223,879 - 4,223,879
5,144,267 -- -- 5,144,267
e . ‘
e Capital assets, at cost
Land and construction in progress 3,602,480 29,961 -- 3,632,441 20,728
f _ Buildings, systems and equipment 73,365,176 47,668,257 732,125 - 121,765,558 6,484,248
: Less accumulated depreciation (23,905,213 {10,838,783) {408,214 (35,151,710) (4.271,112)
Net capital assets 53,062,443 36,859,935 323,911 90,246,289 2,227,264
s TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 58,206,710 36,859,935 323.911 95,390,556 2,227,264
.
L
TOTAL ASSETS $ 68850179 § 42346097 § 728962 § 111925238 § 2,871,558
i (Continued on page 29)
7
|

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Bond anticipation notes
Due to other funds
Accrued salaries, wages and
compensated absences
Accrued interest
Current portion of long-term deht
Deferred revenues
Customer advances
CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest
Current portion mortgage revenue honds
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

- NONGCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term: obligations
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2007

Invested in capital assefs, net of related debt

Restricted for debt services
Restricted for other activities
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.
Net assets of business-fype activities on statement of activities.

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
$ 2793176 § 46,093 $ 22,063 $ 2,861,332 § 55,858
3,910,000 - . 3,910,000 -
1,625,289 39,345 1,664,634 1,630
2,285,728 28,443 12,464 2,326,635 23,853
- 92,876 - 92,876
14,671 1,533,799 2 542 1,551,012 135,715
- - 1,250 1,250 -
893,429 893,429
131,866 131,866
580,000 - 580,000 --
12,234,159 1,740,556 60,382 14,013,034 217,056
4,791,581 17,760,447 87.751 22,639,785 291,371
4,791,581 17,760,447 87.757 22,639,785 29137
17,025,740 19,501,003 126,076 36,652,819 508.427
44,287,443 17,706,421 323,911 62,317,775 1,800,178
2,739,566 469,567 3,209,133 -
2,605,205 2,605,205 562,953
4,797,430 2,063,901 - 278975 7.140,306 -
51,824,439 22,845,094 602,886 75,272,419 2,363,131
$ 68,850,179 § 42346.097 § 728,962 $ 2,871,558
— 4203
$ 75276622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statemenis.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NET ASSETS - December 31

GOVERNMENTAL
' BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL _FUND
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 31706807 § 4482341 § 976,570 $ 37165718 3 1,696,404
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance 27,184,411 1,535,146 801,815 29,521,372 1,271,219
General 434329 436,923 - 921,252 -
Depreciation 2,224,961 1,043,340 43,785 3,312,086 313,76
Taxes 171,712 -- .- 171,772 : --
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 30,065,473 3,015,409 845,600 33,926,482 .1,590,935
OPERATING INCOME 1,641,334 1,466,932 130,970 3,239,236 105,469
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
tnterest income 1,003,706 155,110 . 2h 1,158,841 --
~ Interest and fiscal charges {444,256 (604,471) {(5,018) (1,053,745) (24,758)
Amortization of debt issue costs (44,790) - - (44,790 -
Miscelianeous 114 2,995 3,109 35,237
Other nonoperating expenses (8.779) (7.983) (16,762) -
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 514,660 (458,026) (9.981) 46,653 10,479
iNCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS 2,155,994 1,008,906 120,989 3,285,389 115,948
Contributions from customers 676,548 - 676,548
Transfers to governmental funds (854,331) {475,000) (1,329.331)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,978,211 533,906 120,989 2,63'3,106 115,948
NET ASSETS - January 1 49,886,278 22,311,188 431,897 2,247,183

§ 51824439 § 22845094 § 602,886 $ 2363131

Adjustment to reflect the consotidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 13,380

Change in net assets of business-type activities on statement of activities.

2.646.486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant decommissioning refund
Payments to wastewater ufility
{collection of wastewater revenue)

Paymenis to suppliers and vendors
Payments to employees

NET GASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer fo govemmental funds
Public benefits receipts
Paymants for public benefits

TOTAL CASH FLOWS USED IN NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Payments payroll & benefits for employess - capitatized
Payments for improvement of capital assets
Cost of refiring capital assets
Interest paid
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of revenus bonds

. Princi'pal payments of bonds payable
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds
Principai payments of capital leases
Contributed capital
Contributions refunded

NET CASH USED INCAPITALAND
RELATED FINANGING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Purchase of investments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILTIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
$ 34385357 § 156044 973816 § 35515417 § 1,690,168
2,436,342 - - 2,436,342
{4,257,901) 4,257,901 . - -
(23,868,403) {1,203,504) (134,781)  (25,206,688) {860,354)
(2,867,407) {804,277) (661,378) {4,333,062) {402, 166)
5,827,988 2,406,364 177,657 8,412,009 427,648
{854,331) (475,000) - {1,329,331)
194,088 . - 194,088 -
{239,704} - - (23,701) -
(899,944} {475,000) - (1,374,944) -
{5,878,088) {343,578) {179,507) (6,401,173) (312,243)
(396,931) - - (326,931) .
(179,927) - . (179,927)
(292,054) - - (292,054) .
(596,509) {604,471) (5,018) {1,205,998) (24,758)
100,823 - . 100,823 $1,312
3,911,742 o - 3,911,742 -
(6,010,000) (1,412,197) - (7,422,197) {176,438)
{12,945) {3,495) {2,242) (18,682) -
- (40,725) - (40,725) -
2,483,416 . 2,995 2,486,411
(89,997) - - {89,997)
(6,890,470 (2,404,466) (183,772) (9,478,708) (422,127)
994,696 155,110 25 1,079,831
{378,342) - . (378,342)
546,354 155,110 25 701,489
(1,416,072) (317,992) (6,080) {1,740,154) 5,521
8,256,362 4,964,059 986,324 13,506,745 571,150
46840200 § 4646007 §_ 280234 § 11766591 § 576,671
{Continued on page 32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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cITy OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TC CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTH/ITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operafing activities
Depreciation chaiged to depreciation expense
Depreciation charged to clearing account
Proceeds from miscellanecus sales
Changes in assets and liabilittes

(increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Dug from other funds

Inventories
Increase {decrease) in current fiabilities

Accounts payable

Dueto other funds

Other accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OFERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash
Revenue bond speclal redemption investments
PCAC refunding

Revenue bond depreciation investments
Customer deposits

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends reinvested

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTLITIES ~ WASTEWATER  FUNDS TOTAL FUND
§ 1638789 § 1466932 130970 $ 3236691 § 105,469
1,964,146 1,043,340 43785 3,051,271 313,716
298,119 - - 228,119 .
(616,060) (14,135) {2,754) (632,949) (1,073)
(8,000) 18,840 {3,565) 7,275 -
(5,001) (54,061) . (59,062) (5,163)
3,209 5,997 - 9,206 8,890
887,174 (63,856) 5,297 828,615 4,242
88,261 2,801 - 91,062 148
1,647,351 506 3,924 1,651,781 1,419
5,827,988 2,406,364 177,657 - 8,412,008 427,648
3,251,416 1,547,177 260,234 5,078,827 576,671
1,745,193 493,685 2,238,878 .
1,647,867 - . 1,647,867
150,000 2,605,205 . 2,755,205
45,814 . - 45,814
£.. 6840290 $ 4046067 § 280234 § 11766501 §. 576671
$ 148504 $ $ 148604 §

The accompanying notes are an integral part of fhese financiat statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable
Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable

Payroll deductions

Due to other governments

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

‘TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

- FIDUCIARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2007

AGENCY
— FUNDS

$ 4,591,532
13,800

12,143,298

3,845

16,752,475

$ 23,058
289,491
16.439.9%6

16752475

16,752,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin conform to accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of
America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Reporting Entity

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin was incorporated July 16, 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Laws of Wisconsin, 1883. The
Gity operates under a Council-Mayor form of govemment and provides the following services as authorized by its charier: public safety
(police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture, recreation, education, public improvements, planning
and zoning, and general administrative services.

The City's financial statements do not include any component units, as defined in GASB 14, as there are no organizations which meet the
criterion.

The basic criterion for including a legally separate organization as a Component Unit is the degree of financial accountability the City has
with the organization. The foltowing circumstances set forth the City's financial accountability for a legally separate organization:

a. The City is finéncialiy accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to _
impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on the City. .

b. The City may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the City regardiess of whether the
organization has (1) a separately elected governing board, (2) a goverming board appointed by a highe level of government,
or (3) a jointly appointed board. :

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all
funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activiies.
Govemnmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties for goods or services.”

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included
among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

The business-type activities follow all pronouncements of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. The City has elected not to

adopt the provision of GASB 20, paragraph 7, which states that all FASB statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989,
can be applied to its proprietary funds. Unbilled utility receivables are not recorded as the amount is not material.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Gontinued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information abeut the City's funds, including fiduciary funds. Financial statements of the reporting
entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, net assets/fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latier are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining govemmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and
reparted as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity
of the fund. Exchange fransactions are those in which each pariy receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Funds are arganized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City
or meets the following criterfa;

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and

b. The same element of the individual governmentat fund or enterprise fund that met the 10 percent test is at least 5 percent of
the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

G In addition, any other governmental or proprietary fund that the Crty believes is particularly important to financial statement
users may he reported as a major fund.

Basis of Presentation

The City reports the foflowing major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Debt Service — Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest,
and related costs. :

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Marshfield Utilities - All activities neeessary to provide electric, water and telecommunication services to residents of the City and
outlaying areas. Fund activities include administration, billing and collection, operafions, maintenance, and financing.

Wastewater - This fund accounts for the maintenance of the City’s sanitary sewer system. Wisconsin State Statutes Seclion
66.076, permit municipalities to implement sewer fees to recover the costs of operation, maintenance, repair, and depreciation of
sewer collection and transportatlon facilities. Sewer maintenance costs are recovered through a user fee rather than through the

property fax.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal service fund — Accounts for fleet machinery and equipment provided to other departments of the government, or to actual
parties, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Agency - This fund accounts for taxes and deposits collected by the City, acting in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to other
* governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving
equal vaiue in retum, include property tax revenue, grants, and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period for which the levy is intended to finance, which is the year after the taxes are levied. Taxes levied in 2007 that will

- be coflected in 2008 are recorded as receivable and deferred revenue. Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before

revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Eligibility includes timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required o be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to
be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers all
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current year. Expenditures generally are recorded when the
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Significant revenue sources, which are susceptible to accrual include property taxes, state share revenues, grants, contributions, and
interest. All other revenue sources including licenses, permits, fines, and forfeits are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received.

Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred revenues. They are recognized as revenues in the succeeding
year when services financed by the levy are being provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the City is entitled the resources and the amounts are
available. Amounts owed to the City which are not available are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues. Amounts received prior
to the entitlement period are also recorded as deferred revenues.

Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and available as current assets. Annual installments due
in future years are reflected as receivables and deferred revenues.

The City reports deferred revenues on its governmental funds balance sheet, which arise from taxes levied in the current year which are
for subsequent year's operations. For govemmental fund financial statements, deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not
meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received before the City has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criterfa are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Basis of Aceouhting - Continued

The proprietary funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and have elected not to follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. The proprietary funds distinguish operafing
revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water and sewer utilities are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciafion on capital assets. Al revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, as classified in the statement of cash flows, consist of all highly liquid investments with an initiaf maturity of
three months or less.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amounts. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is befieved that
the amount of such allowance would not be material. Unbilled utility services at year end are recognized as revenues and receivables in
the accompanying financial statements.

" Inventory

Inventory is priced at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The cost of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid ltems

Cash payments benefiting future periods have been recorded as prepaid items. They will be reflected as expenditures or expenses when -

incurred in the subsequent year. Prepaid items in governmental funds are reserved for in fund balance, because prepaids are not
expendable, available financial resources.

Due To/From Cther Funds
During the course of operations, numercus transactions eccur between individual funds for goods provided or servicas rendered. These
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds” or "due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets
on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The “revenue bond construction” account is used to
report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances thaf are restricted for use in consfruction. The "revenue bond special redemption®
account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The "revenue bond

depreciation” account is used fo report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

Other restricted assets include a "DNR Replacement Fund" which is required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for
repairs and maintenance on the Wastewater Utility plant. "Gustomer Deposits" are deposits made by the customers which are due fo the
customers unless their bills are not paid. '
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which includes property, plant, and equipment, and infrastructure, are reported at cost or estimated historical cost i acfual
cost is not available, Contributed assets are reported af estimated fair value at the time received. General infrastructure assets, such as
roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, streets, sidewalks and drainage, and lighting systems, acquired prior to January 1, 2005, are reporied at
estimated historical cost using prior financial information. Capital assets are depreciated using the straighi-line method. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset’s lives are not capitalized.

Major capital outlays for capital asssts of business-type activities are included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
interest expenses incurred during construction are capitalized as part of the additions to capital assets.

Capitalization thresholds and the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capital Asset Category C?rﬂlrt:gﬁiﬂ?n Estimated Useful Life
Infrastructure $ 1,000 20-70
Land ' - N/A
Improvements 1,000 15-40
Buildings 1,000 15-50
Machinery and eguipment 1,000 3-40

Compensated Absences

Vacation pay accumulates and is fully vested. All vacations are based upon the employee's anniversary date of hire. For substantially all
City employees, vacation time eamed and not taken at year-end must be used before their anniversary date in the subsequent year. All
earned vacation is paid to terminating employees if they give at least two weeks notice prior to quitting, or, employees whose service is
being terminated due to discharge, death, or retirement shall receive all earned vacation based upon actuat months of service.

Sick leave can be accumulated up to a maximum of 120 days. All sick leave accumulated is cancelled when an employee leaves the
employ of the City. For one represented employee group the maximum accumulation is 60 days. These same represented employees
shall receive one additional day's pay for every month that they do not use sick leave after they've accumulated the maximum of 60 days.
Such payment shall be made on an annual basis.

Compensated absence expenditures and liabilities are recorded and adjusted to December 31st salaries/wages at the close of each fiscal
year.

Beond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as we!l as issuance costs are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuance are reporied as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance are reponed as ofher financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not wﬁhhetd
from the actual debt procesds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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CiTY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Advance Refundings of Debt

In the government-wide and propristary fund financial statements, gains and losses from advance refundings of debt resulting in
defeasance are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the Iife
of the new debt using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable deferred amount.

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are iegally restricted by outside parties for specific purposes.

Net Assets

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in three components as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted - This consists of net assets that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generaily it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed.

Unrestricted - This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”,

State and Federal Aids

State general and categorical aids are recognized as revenue in the entitlement year. Federal aids for reimbursable programs are
recognized as revenue in the year related program expenditures are incurred. Aids received prior to meeting revenue recognition ctiteria
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interfund Transactions

. Interfund transactons are accounted for as revenue, expenses or expenditures in the fund financial statements. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to ancther fund, are
recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Al
other inferfund fransfers are reported as transfers.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this
generai rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes (which are reported as fransfers) and other charges between the government's water and
wastewater function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingant assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 2-A - Cash and Investmenis

State statutes permit the City to invest available cash balances, other than debt service funds, in time deposits of authorized depositoies,
state obligations, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, repurchase agreements and other investments secured by federal
securities, high grade commercial paper, and the local government pooled-investmeni fund administered by the state investment board.
Available balances in the Debt Service Fund may be invested in municipal obligations, obligations of the United States and the local
government pooled-invesiment fund. No significant violations of these restrictions occurred during the year.

As of December 31, 2007, the City had the following investments.

, Carrying

Investment Maturities ) Fair Value Amount
Federal Home Loan Consolidation Bonds Various dates from 2009-2013 $ 5679003 $ 5,665901
State of Wisconsin Invesiment Pool Less than one year 12,838,012 12,838,012
Other ' September 1, 2012 19,000 19,000
Total Investments, December 31, 2007 $ 18,536,015 18,622,913

. Fair (Market) Value of Deposits and Investments - Deposits and investments are reported at fair value. At December 31, 2007, the fair

value of the City's deposits and investments approximated original cost, therefore no fair value adjustments were necessaty.
Determining Fair Value - Fair value of the City’s deposits and investments are determined as follows:

1) Deposits and investments with stated interest rates (savings account and certificate of deposits) are stated at cost.

2) - U.S. Treasury bills/notes are stated as amortized cost, and

3) State of Wiscansin Local Government Investment Pool fair value is determined by the Pool's investment board based on pubhshed
market quotations.

Investment Pool infoermation - Participation in the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool is voluntary. The Pool's
regulatory oversight is provided by state statutes and its investment board. The fair value of the City’s position in the Pool is the same as
the value of the Pool shares. At December 31, 2007, the Pool's fair value was 100 percent of book value.

Income Allocation - Interest income is generally allocated to the fund that owns the certificate of deposit, money market account, savings
account, and investment,

interest Rate Risk. State statutes limit invesiments in commercial paper, corperate bonds, and mutual bond funds to mature or may be
tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within not more than 7 years of the date acquired. The Gity's investment policy does not
further limit investment maturities as a means of further managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. State statutes limit investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and mutual bond funds fo the top fwo ratings issued
by naticnally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City’s investment policy does not further limit its investment choices. The
State of Wisconsin Investment Pool is unrated, however, the investments at all times consist solely of securities and instrument in which
Municipalities are permitted to invest. The Consolidation Bonds were rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Moody's Investors Service.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 2-A - Cash and Investments - Continued

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be retumed
toit. The City's investment policy requires collateral on cerfificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of at least 110% of the market
value. As of December 31, 2007, $6,192,328 of the City's bank balance of $6,472,960 was exposed to cusiodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured, collateral pledged by bank $ 3,000,000
Uninsured and uncollateralized 3,192,328
$ 6,192,328

Other Investment — The Marshtield Utilities has invested in American Transmission Company, LLC {ATC). ATC is an elactric power
group consisting of 28 Wisconsin Electric utilities. The Utility's initial investment gives the Utility approximately a .5% interest in ATC. This
investment is carried on the Utility's books at cost plus undistributed eamings. For the 2007 year-end the Utility received cash distributions
totaling $594,738. The Utility’s total earnings for 2007 were $743,422. Separate financial information for ATC may be obtained by writing
ic American Transmission Company, P.0.Box 47, Waukesha, W1 53187-0047.

__NOTE 3 - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property in December when the tax roll is certified. Taxes are levied in December and
payable in two installments on January 31 and July 31, or payable in full on January 31. Special assesstents, charges, and personal
property taxes are payable in full on January 31. The City bills and collects its own properly taxes and also taxes for the State, County,
Technical College, and Public Schools until February 1, af which time all uncollected real estate taxes are turned over to the respective
counties for collection. Collection of the taxes and remittance of them to the appropriate entities are accounted for in the Tax Agency Fund.
City property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied for and available for use. The 2007 tax roll (levied for 2008) has besn set
up as a receivable and offset by the amounts due to other governmental units and deferred income tax revenue for the City's portion.
Advance tax collections are offset against the receivable.

NOTE 4 - Rehabilitation Loans

The City has outstanding Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) loans receivable with various businesses and homeowners.
These loans are originally made from grant proceeds. The loan agreements provide for various repayment options, including installment
payments and payment in full upon transfer of the property secured by the loans. When the loans are repaid, the funds become the
property of the City and are restricted for future rehabilitafion loan projects. The loan activity for the year was as follows:

Balance Payments & Balance
1107 Additions Foreclosures 1231107
Community Development Block '
Grant Program $ 109423 % - % - 3 109,423
Residential Revolving Loan 184,526 2,100 - 186,628

TOTAL _ $ 293949 § 2100 § - § 296,049
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 5 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

BALANCES BALANCES
11/07 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 12/31/07
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated;
Land $ 7953014 § - $ 3,358 $ 7,949,656
Construction in progress , 358,835 117,857 320,000 156,692
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8,311,849 117,857 323,358 8,106,348
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings ) 16,853,944 . 2,076,616 9,000 18,521,560
Infrastructure 51,458,002 2,739,421 - 54,197,423
Improvements othar than buildings 2,073,735 286,857 S 2,360,592
Machinery and equipment 13,716,234 787,730 494 194 14,009,770
Total capital assets being depreciated 84,101,915 5,890,624 503,194 89,489,345
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings 6,721,476 460,949 9,000 7,173,425
Infrastructure 13,125,167 - 1,271,981 - 14,397,148
Improverents other than buildings 520,866 91,848 - 612,714
Machinery and equipment 10,399,546 578,307 409,319 10,568,534
Total accumulated depreciation 30,767,055 2,403,085 418,319 32.751.821
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 53,334,860 3,487,539 84,875 56,737,524
Government Activity Capital Assets, Net $ 61646708 § 3,605,386 $ 409233 § 64843872

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Cuiture, recreation, and education
Conservation and development
Other

Total

49

$ 187,335
229,331
1,381,488
285,629

5,587

313,715
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 5 - Capital Assets - Continued

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITES

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure/systems
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depractation for:
Buildings
Infrastructure/systems
Machinery and equipment
Total accumultated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activity Capital Assets, Net

BALANCES BALANCES
11107 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 12131807

$ 1547519 % 332,344 § - § 1,879,863
2,862,215 5,805,670 6.915,307 1,752,578
4,409,734 6.138.014 6.915,307 3,632,441
27,290,454 803,544 87,674 28,006,324
80,092,124 5,944,153 551,989 85,484,288
8,104,713 413,757 243,524 8,274,946
115,487,291 7,161,454 883,187 121,765,558
6,926,644 . 1,009,521 50,749 7,885,416
20,804,986 2,219,060 596,958 22,427,088
4,514,313 556,893 232,000 7,839,206
32,245,943 3.785.474 879,707 35,151,710
83,241,348 3,375.980 3:480 86,613,848
$ 87651082 § 9513995 § 6918787 §$  90,246.289

Depreciation expense for business-type activities was charged to functions as follows:

Efectric and Water
Wastewater
Emergency Medical Services

Totat

NOTE 6 - Short-Term Notes Payable

Short-term notes payable at December 31, 2007 are as follows:

DESCRIPTION
Bond Anticipation Note

$ 2,673,586
1,068,103
43,785
$ 3,785.474
BALANCES BALANCES
7 ADDITIONS PAYMENTS 1203107 :
§ 5475000 § - § 5475000 5 -

The note was issued on August 1, 2006 at 5.55% interest, was paid on August 1, 2007.

NOTE 7 ~ LEASES

Capital Lease — The City has entered info a 5-year capital lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of a truck for its
Wastewater Utility. Future lease payments include interest at 3.99% per annum. This vehicle is included in Capital Assets of the
Enterprise Funds as Machinery and Equipment of $216,112 less Accumulated Depreciation of $180,094 at December 31, 2007.

This lease was paid off in the current year.

e
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 8 - Long-Term Obligations

. Details of the- City's long-term obligations are set forth below.

Summary of Long-Term Obfigations

AMOUNTS
BALANCES BALANCES DUE WITHIN
_ 1107 - ADDITIONS PAYMENTS 12/31/07 ONE YEAR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General obligation debt
Bonds payable $ 1,510,035 $ - § 1,016,317 § 10,502,718 § 943,827
Notes payable . 13,420,227 1,855,000 2,350,227 12,925,000 2,320,000
State Trust Fund Loan _ 155,000 : - - 155,000 - 33,539
Other long-term obligations ,
Vacation pay and comp time ‘ 266,023 282,704 266,023 282,704 282.704
Total Governmental Activities § 25360285 § 2.137.704 $ 3632667 § _ 23865422 § 3,580,070
For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally fiquidated by the general fund.
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds $ 770,965 $ § 18,683 § 752282 § 21,174
Morigage Revenue Bonds 25,965,713 1,847,199 24,018,514 - 2,109,838
Bond Anticipation Note - 3,910,000 - 3.910,000 3,210,000
Total Business-Type Activities § 26,736,678 § 3,910.000 $ 1965882 $ 28680796 § 2,131,012




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 8 - Long-Term Obligations - Continued
General Obligation Debt

All general obligation debt is secured by the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the City. The general obligation debt is
expected to be repaid with general property taxes, and special assessments. General obligation debt at December 31, 2007, is comprised
of the following issues;

DATES OF BALANCE
ISSUE DESCRIPTION RATES (%) MATURITY 12/31/07
Bonds Payable
1298 . 515-6.50 10-18 $ 830,000
5-01 5.55-6.65 3-21 620,000 o
1-03 200-4.05 4-18 1,610,000 }
303 513-5.70 12-22 3,020,000 b
5-04 1.40- 4.10 417 2,055,000
5-04 3.50-5.50 4-15 565,000 ’ l
5-05 3.45-3.60 5-13 2,555,000 ]
Notes Payable -
5-01 3.70 - 4.50 3-11 1,295,000 ( %
5-02 3.00 - 4.25 312 2,075,000 el
1-03 2.00-3.60 3-12 1,325,000
3-06 3.5-3.625 3-16 3,905,000 £
12-06 3.55-3.7 3-16 . 2,470,000 7 3
12-07 _ 3.5 3-17 1,855,000
State Trust Fund Loan .
10-06 5 3-11 155,000 !
Total General Obligation Debt $  24,335000 -
Less General Obligaticn Debt to be repaid by Enterprise Funds : 752,282 g
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT § 23,582,718
g
|
.
L]
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- CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
b DECEMBER 31, 2007

L _NOTE 8 - Long-Term Obligations - Continued

; Enterprise Fund Debt

L Enterprise Fund debt is expected to be repaid with Enterprise Fund revenue. The morigage revenue bonds are expected to be repaid with
electric, water and wastewater revenue. Enterprise Fund debt at December 31, 2007, is comprised of the following issues:

] DATES OF BALANCE
o ISSUE DESCRIPTION RATES (%) MATURITY 12/31/07
Mortgage Revenue Bonds _
| ‘ 10-93 40-55 : 1213 $ 2,805,000
3-08 : 2,761 517 1,952,210
_ 9.98 2,761 5-18 13,191,304
6-02 : 3.0-4.35 12-11 510,000
] 5-03 2.00-350 513 915,000
5-05 4125 - 4,65 5-20 1,565,000
10-06 3.55-4.50 12-26 1,550,000
| ‘ . 12-06 . 3.6-4.00 5-21 1,530,000
7-07 5.30 8-08 3,910,000
- General Obligation Bonds .
| [ 3-03 5.13-5.70 12-22 752,282
TOTAL ENTERPRISE DEBT $ 28,680,796

} General Obligation Debt Limit Calculation

The 2007 equalized valuation of the City as certified by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue is $1,282,755,200. The legal debt fimit and
margin of indebtedness as of December 31, 2007 in accordance with Section 67.03(1)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes follows:

[’ Debt fimit (5% of $1,282,755,200) $ 64,137,760
. ,5 Applicable long-term debt (24,335,000)
Amount available in debt service fund 1,887,738
H Margin Of Indebtedness $ 41,600,498
' Maturities of Long-Term Obligations
i J Maturities of the long-term deht to maturity, at December 31, 2007, are:
" GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT ENTERPRISE FUND DEBT
g YEARS PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
( i 2008 $ 8,297.366 8 871,464 $ 6,041,012 $ 1,045,356
» 2009 ' 3,384,864 765,800 2,202,044 747,782
B 2010 2,993,054 646,675 2,280,249 671,061
l } 2011 2,682,586 537,088 2,383,159 590,323
B 2012 2,327,617 438,020 2,762,047 641,051
_ 2013-2017 : 7,400,601 1,130,834 9,920,842 1,364,567
— 2018-2022 _ 1,487,632 244,151 2,641,442 279,719
l : 1 2023-2027 - - 450,000 51,635
TOTAL $§ 23582718 § 4634040 § 28680796 $ 5391395
= =
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 9 - Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the Cify has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition
and construction of industrial and commerciai facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from debt payment receipts on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership
of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, ner any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as fiabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2007, there were three series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$6,195,000. ‘ .

NOTE 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plans

All eligible City of Marshfield employees parficipate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All permanent employees expacted to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to
participate in the WRS. Covered employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 6.0 percent of their salary (3.0
percent for Elected Officials, 5.1 percent for Protective Occupations with Social Security, and 3.4 percent for Protactive Occupations
without Social Security) fo the plan. Employers may make these confributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are required
fo contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for City of Marshfield employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $11,289,703, the employer's
total payroll was $11,721,708. The total required contribution for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $1,598,993 which consisted of
$982,257 or 8.7 percent of payroll from the employer and $616,736 or 5.5 percent of payroll from employees. Total contributions for the
years ending December 31, 2006 and 2005, were $1,558,514 and $1,494,553 respectively, equal fo the required contributions for each
year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for Elected Officials and 55 for Protective Occupation employees) are entitied to receive a
refirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for Protective Occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced beneits.
The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average eamings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. Final average
earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest years’ earmings. Employees terminating covered employment before bacoming
eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For
employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable
sarvice in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24,
1998, are immediately vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all benefits are determined under

Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.Q. Box 7931, Madison, WI 53707-7931.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 11 - Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

In addiﬁon to the pension benefits provided to employees through the Wisconsin Retirement Fund, the City provides the following post-
employment benefits: _

Upon termination of a non-represented employee who has worked at least 20 years for the City and has accepted to receive an annuity or
disability from the Wisconsin Retirement System, the City will deposit the equivalent doltar value of the employee’s accumulated unused
sick leave balance, up to a maximum of 980 hours, into the employee’s Post Employment Health Plan. Unused sick leave balances can -
only be ufilized for medical insurance premiums. In 2007, each non-represented employee made an annual contribution of $500 on a pre-
tax basis to hisfher own Post Employment Health Pian. This $500 annual non-represented employee contribution ceased effective
January 1, 2008 due fo recent IRS clarification regarding the tax status of these contributions. At the employees’ discretion, employee
contributions are invested in various investment instruments offered by the plan administrator. The accumulated balance of an employee’s
contribution to the plan can be utilized for any future medical expenses and/or medical insurance by the former employee.

The estimated future fiability for current employees is undeterminable and therefore is not recorded as & liability. The City currently pays
1.0% of wages on non-represented employees info a liability account to fund the future obligations of the City for this plan. The City was
not required to make a payment from the Post Employment Health Plan during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 As of December

- 31, 2007, the City has $282,652 accumulated for payments that may be required in the future.

NOTE 12 - Interfund Receivables, Payab!es, and Transfers

individual fund interfund recsivable and payable balances at December 31, 2007, are as follows:
FUND DUETO DUE FROM

General Fund $ 4,626,833 5 17,402

_Other Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Taxi System - 83,428
Cabie Television - 206
Capital Projects Funds
Urban Development 2,511 4,625
Water Main Construction - . 15,469
TID #4 - 1,801,772
TID #5 : - 1,648,005
TID #6 - 32,005
TID#8 - 13,853
Enterprise Funds
Electric and Water Utility 26,260 1,625,269
Wastewater Utility 633,374 39,345
Internal Service Fund
Vehicles and Equipment 10,528 1,630
$ 5299506 $ 5299506

Balances resulted from the fiming differences between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, {2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, (3) payments between funds are made, (4) and funds
overdraw their share of pooled cash or when there are transactions between funds where one fund does not participate in the City’s pooled
cash.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN i
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued |
DECEMBER 31, 2007 )

NOTE 12 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers - Continued

Individual fund transfers during 2007 are as follows:

FUND TRANSFERS IN TRANSFERS OUT [ 1
General Fund $ 864,807 $ 147,651 '

_ =

Debt Service Fund e

Long-term Notes : 1,398,240 2,403,675 - o

Other Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Room Tax . - 168,838
Convention and Visitors Bureau ' 168,838 ' - n
Fire Grant _ 172 : - )
Capital Projects Funds —
Street Construction 932,918 - 1
Storm Sewer Construction 362,000 226,995 i
Parks and Recreation Capital Projects 540 -
Urban Development 27,140 - £
Fire Protection 392,561 - 3
Water Main Construction 175,719 - -
City Hall Remodeling ' 81,000 4,044 .
TID #3 - 20,914 L
TID# - 99,535 Ed
TID #4 - 637,565
TID 46 - 4,044 1
TID #5 ~ _ 161,182 L
TID #7 764,276 - o
Enterprise Funds N
Electric and Water Utility ' - 854,331
Wastewater Utility - 475,000
Permanent Fund 5

8,501

$ 5208231 5,208,231 '

Perpetual Fund . -

Transfers are used fo (1) move revenues fram the fund that statute or budget requires collection from to the fund that statute or budget

~ required to expend them. (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt =
service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounied for { ;
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizafions.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
- DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 13 - Fund Equity

Reservations and Designations

Governmental fund balances are reserved for special revenue funds (specific purposes and long-term receivables), debt service funds
(debt retirement), capital project funds (debt covenants and projects), and other activities (perpetual care). General Fund has reserved
fund balance for prepaid items.

Fund balances have also been designated for spemflc purposes in the special revenue and capital prOJects funds, and for subsequent
budgets in the general fund.

Deficits
The following individual funds had deficits at December 31, 2007:

Special Revenue Funds Business Improvement District $ 839
Capitat Project Funds Urban Development 2,524
Water Main Construction 15,564
T.1.D. #4 {Downtown Improvements) 2,054,756
T.LD. #5 (Mill Creek) 1,590,970
T.1.D. #6 (Figi) 32,005
T.1.D. #8 (Northway Mall) 23,954

The deficits in the Tax Incremental Finance Districts (T.1.D.’s} are expected to be funded through future tax increments, and the remaining
deficits will be funded by future revenues.

NOTE 14 - Risk Management

-The City is exposed to various risks of loss refated to forts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to

employees; and natural disasters. The City manages these risks through the purchase of various forms of commercial insurance. Ceriain
of the commercial insurance policies have established deductible amounts whereby the City would be responsible for the portion of claims,
losses and damages under the deductible fimits. All funds participate in the coverages provided by the commercial insurance carriers.
Each fund would be responsible for its share of losses either below the deductible amounts or for losses exceeding the coverage limits of
the commercial policies.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year. There were no settlements that exceeded insurance
coverages in any of the last three years.

NOTE 15 - Joint Ventures

Marshfield Fairgrounds Commission - The Marshfield Fairgrounds Commission is a joint venture between the Common Council of the
City of Marshfield and the Weod County Board of Supervisors for the improvement, maintenance, repair and operation of the Marshfield
Fairgrounds. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen from the City of Marshfield who are appointed by the mayor
with approval of the council, and three county board supervisors who are appointed by the chairman of the Wood County Board with
approval of the county board. The Fairgrounds Commission has the full, complete and exclusive jurisdiction of the fairgrounds. The City of
Marshfield is to provide the necessary funds for the maintenance of the land, exclusive of the buildings and similar structures, while Wood
County is providing funds for the construction, improvement, repair and maintenance of the buildings located on the Marshfield
Fairgrounds, other than such properties owned by third parties. Any buildings or structures constructed upon the fairgrounds by the
Commission become the properly of the City of Marshfield. Accordingly, the real estate and related buildings are capitalized in the
governmental activities’ capital assets. Complete separate financial statements for the Fairgrounds Commission may be obtained at the
Finance Depariment, City of Marshfield, 630 S. Central Avenue, Marshfield, W1 54449,
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 15 - Joint Ventures - Continued

University Extension Center Commission - The University Extension Center Commission is & joint venture between the Common
Council of the City of Marshfield and the Wood County Board of Supervisors for the purchase of the site and construction of said center,
and the care, custody, maintenance, improvement and repair of the lands and buildings during its operation as a University Extension
Center. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen of the Gity of Marshfield who are appointed by the mayor with
approval of the council, and three county board supervisors who are appointed by the chairman of the Wood County Board with approval
of the county board. Before September of every year, the Commission submits to the Marshfield Common Council and the Wood County
Board a budget indicating the amount needed from each governing body to defray the costs of maintenance, care, custody, repair and
improvement of the buildings an premises of the University of Wisconsin - Marshfield/Wood County for the ensuing year. Each municipal
unit has a 50% share of the venture, and accordingly, the City's 50% share is capitalized in the governmental activities’ capital assets.
Complete separate financial statements for the University Extension Center Gommission may be obtained at the Office of the Finance
Department, 630 8. Central Avenue, Marshfield, W 54449,

NOTE 16 - Contingencies and Commitmenis

Legal Contingencies

The City participates in a number of intergovernmental grant programs, which have various requirements, and are subject to audit by the
awarding agencies. Such audits may result in reimbursements of funds advanced or disallowance of program expenditures. The amount,
if any, of grant funds which may be disallowed by the grantor at future dafes cannot be determined.

There are several lawsuits pending in which the City is involved. The City's attorneys estimate the potential claims resulting from litigation
against the City that are nof covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial statements of the City.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOQUNTS ACTUAL  FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 7772808 § 7,772,808 3§ 7,744,885 § (27,923)
Special assessments 370,000 366,000 416,277 50,277
Intergovernmental revenues 7,746,345 7,703,122 7,916,249 213,127
Licenses and permits 174,400 174,400 206,673 32,273
Fines, forfeits and penalties 219,300 219,300 134,092 (85,208)
Public charges for services 726,327 717,378 877,105 159,727
Other revenue 798,079 806,562 984,140 177,578
TOTAL REVENUES 17,807,259 17,759,510 18,279.421 519,851
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,819,609 2,700,127 - 2,742,988 (42,861)
Pubiic safety 6,901,149 6,881,380 5,800,138 81,242
Public works 5,604,066 5,617,161 5,416,012 201,149
Health and human services 164,905 166,805 149,944 16,861
Culture, recreation and education 2,855,752 2,865,978 2,811,302 54,676
Conservation and development 558,827 558,827 484,049 74,778
Capital outlay 350,908 362,696 311.788 50,908
- TOTAL EXPENDITURES 19.255.216 19,152,974 18,716,221 436,753
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,447 957) {1,393.400) (436,800) 956,604
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Enterprise Fund 849,918 849,916 854,331 4415
Transfers in 687,658 691,053 10,496 (680,557)
Transfers out (42 .945) (147,565) (147,651) 86
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 1.494,629 1,393,404 717,176 (676,228)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 46,672 280,376 280,376
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,823,982 6,823,982 6.823.982

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

b 6870654 §  6.823.982 § 7.104.358 $ 280,376
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ON BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL
: DECEMBER 31, 2007

General Policies - The Cily follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Annual budgets, as required by state statutes, are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for all
govemmental funds except those noted later (those funds for which multi-year project budgets are approved). Appropriations lapse at
year-end except those separately identified as designated for subsequent years' expenditures.

In August of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Administrator so that a budget may be
prepared. Prior to October 15, the Gity Administrator submits to the Gommon Council a proposed operating budget, including capital
expenditures, for the fiscal year commencing January 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. A
public hearing is held in the Common Councif chamber to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to December 1, the budget is legally adopted
by the Commeon Council through the passage of a resolution.

The adopted budget is prepared by fund, function and sub-function (departments, activities or projects) level. The City's department or
division heads may make transfers of appropriations within a sub-function upon approval of their respective commissions, boards or
commitiees. Transfers of appropriafions between sub-function require the approval of the Common Council. The legal level of budgetary
control is the sub-function level. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at this level without two-thirds Commen Council

approval to amend the budget. The Common Council properly authorized all supplemental appropriations during the year, totaling
$16,378. _

Although there are adopted budgets for the enterprise funds and the internal service fund, budget to actual data is not shown since there is
no requirement under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to present budget to actual comparisons for enterptise funds and
internal service funds as part of the general purpose financial statements, even if annual budgets are legally adopted for these funds.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, the Special Revenue
Funds, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. Several Special Revenue Funds had no budgeted expenditures since
effective control is achieved through alternative procedures, and some capital project funds are multi-year projects and the associated

expenditures and revenues are budgeted only during the initial year of the projects although annual auditing fees and transfers may be
budgeted on an ongoing basis. Subsequent year expenditures for multi-year projects are achieved through utilization of the remaining
fund balances.

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting is not used.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations - For the year ended December 31, 2007, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts for
general govemment in the general fund by $42,861. These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance in the general fund.
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Taxes
Property
Sales and use
Payment in lieu of taxes
Interest and penalties on taxes
TOTAL

Special Assessments

Intergovernmenial revenues
Federal grants
State shared revenues
State grants
State payments
Grants from local governments
TOTAL

Licenses and Permits
Liguor and malt beverage license

- Nonbuiness license

Building permits
Zoning permits and fees
“TOTAL

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties
Law and ordinance violations

Public Charges for Services
General government
Pubtic safety
Transportation
Sanitation and utilities
Health
Human services

Cuhure, recreation and education

Conservation and development
Other charges for services
-TOTAL

- CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
"YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 7,648,857 § 7,648,857 § 7,622,463
120 120 117
122,931 122,931 121,846
900 900 459
1,772 808 7.772,808 7,744,885
370,000 366,000 16277
1,223 -- --
5,751,545 5,751,545 5,792,856
1,610,295 1,592,295 1,743,796
98,000 98,000 120,957
285,282 261,282 258640
71,746,345 7,703,122 7.916,249
51,300 51,300 49,592
10,400 10,400 11,650
106,600 106,000 135,600
6,700 6,700 9,831
174,400 174,400 206.673
219,300 219,300 134,097
32,100 32,100 38,182
17,400 17,400 33,427
35,500 35,500 116,434
2,500 2,500 7,852
101,747 101,747 116,306
1,351 1,351 1,542
325,617 325,617 304,686
1,000 1,000 1,263
1,500 1,500 1,145
518715 518,715 621,337
{Continited on Page 55}
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Intergovernmental charges for services
State
Other local governments
Local depariments
TOTAL

. Other

Interest

Rent

Donations

Sale of other equipment and property

Other miscellaneous revenues -
TOTAL

TOTAL REVENUES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHERULE OF REVENUES, Continued
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL
ORIGINAL - FINAL ‘AMOUNTS

$ 14,000 § 14,000 $ 20,860

118,149 109,200 171,009

75,463 75,463 63.899

207,612 198.663 255,768

450,000 450,000 557,461 -

323,635 323,635 325,112

6,694 17,677 51,574

17,750 15,250 20,157

- - 29,836

798,079 806,562 984,140

§ 17,807,259 8 17,759,570 $ 18,279,421
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L CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

' GENERAL FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL

ORIGINAE FINAL AMOUNTS
General Government
Legislative 3 79,969 $ 79,969 § 76,024
~ Legal ' : 165,250 164,208 136,782
r~ General administration 1,242,178 1,240,978 1,352,968
3 } Financial administration 860,507 742,807 727,860
General buildings and plant 280,615 281,115 280,743
Other general government ' 191,050 191,050 168611
~ TOTAL 2,819,609 2,700,127 2,742,988
Public Safety
\ Law enforcement 4,004,229 4,001,026 4,002,162
h Fire protection ‘ 2,435,794 2424214 2,364,112
r Inspection 319,917 321,117 299,704
w Emergency communications 126,056 127,556 127,508
Disaster control 15,153 7,467 6652
TOTAL 6,901,149 6,881,380 6,800,138
Public Works
Administration for highway and streets 528,631 536,231 534,540
Transportation cost pools ‘ 65,789 65,789 5,601
Highway and street maintenance 3,180,434 3,183,934 3,153,647
Road related facilities 999,694 999,694 884,137
Other transportation 137,308 139,303 . 148,28%
Sanitation 692,210 892,210 689,798
- TOTAL 5,604,066 5,617,161 5416,012
" Health and Human Services
= Cemetary 146,101 142,001 133,384
| Aging 24.804 24,804 16,560
TOTAL 164,905 166,805 149,944
Culture, Recreation and Education
- Culture 1,337,748 1,339,748 1,373,744
Parks 639,893 643,319 610,783
B Recreation programs and events 449,866 452 265 411,149
Recreation facilities 135,261 135,261 132,787
700 _ 248,691 251,091 238,304
____ Education 44,293 44,293 44 535
TOTAL 2,855,752 2.865.978 2,811,302
- {Continued on Page 57)
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Conservation and Development
Resource conservation
Economic development
Other conservation and development
TOTAL

Capita! Oﬂtiay
TOTAL

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES, Continued
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BUDGET AMOUNTS © ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 199,157 § 199,157 § 170,851
9,915 9,915 6,988
349,755 349,755 306.210
558,827 598,827 484,049
350,908 362,636 311,788
350,908 362,696 311,788
3 19,255,216 $ 19,152,974 § 18.716.21
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

YARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
‘ ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS _ (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes : $ 2,589,981 § 2,589,981 § 2,583,981 § -
Other revenue 49,609 49,609 53,564 3.955
TOTAL REVENUES 2,639.590 2,639,590 2,643,545 3,955
EXPENDITURES
Gurrent
Principai retirement 3,219,330 3,219,330 3,202,824 16,506
Interest and fiscal charges 850,206 850,206 912,053 {61,847
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,069,536 4,069,536 414,877 (45,341)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,429.946) (1,429,546) (1.471,332) {41,386)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt -- 1,855,000 1,855,000
Transfer from Enterprise Fund 475,000 475,000 475,000 --
Transfers in 923,240 923,240 923,240 -
Transfers out : -- ' (2.403.675) (2,403,675)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 1,398,240 1,398,240 849,565 (548,675)
NET GHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (31,706) {31,706) (621,767) (590,061)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINMING OF YEAR 2,509,505 2,509,505 2,509,505

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $_
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_____

ASSETS _
Cash and equivalents
Receivables
Accounts
Loans
Other
Prepaids
Due from
Other funds
Qther governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to

Other funds

Other governments
Deferred revenues

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Reserved for

Special revenue funds

Capital projects

Other activities - prepaids

{Ofther activities - nonexpendable trust
Unreserved

Designated

Undesignated

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

PERMANENT TOTAL
_ FUND NONMAJOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL PERPETHAL GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS CARE FUNDS
$ 1809252 § 2248066 $ 186604 S 4243962
04625 1,283,665 1,383,290
1,040,747 - . 1,080,747
2,583 . 223 2,806
6,470 3,250 9,720
- 2511 2,511
134,040 52,137 186,177
$ 30877178 359629 § 1868678 6869213
$ 27768 § 165,835 $ ~$ 193,603
83,634 3,532,208 3,615,840
13 21 23
142,920 1,889.338 2,031,558
253635 5,587,600 5,841,235
2,039,085 N 2,039,085
- 520,362 520,362
6,470 3,250 . 9,720
; - 186,67 186,367
789,366 739,459 1,528,825
(839) (3.256,042) L (32%.881)
2,834,087 (1992.971) 186867 1.007.978
$ 3087717 $ 35946295 1368675 6869213
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ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables

Taxes

Loans

“Other
Prepaids
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Bue to other governments
Deferred revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Unreserved:
Designated
Undesignated
- TOTAL FUND BALANCES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANGCE
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECE MBER 31, 2007

CONVENTION COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL
~ROOM © &VISITORS  DEVELOPMENT ECONOMIC REHAB

TAX BUREAU BLOCK DEVELOPMENT  REVOLVING
FUND FUND GRANT fUND LOAN
$ 160,526 $ 144,463 3 -3 794,010 §
- 2133
109,423 744,658

3,889

$ 160,526 $ 148.352 § 1094238 15708418 - .

] - § - § - $ 218
2470 -- 43,500
2470 - 43.781
3,88% 109,423 1,527,060
160,526 141,993
160,526 145,882 109,423 1,527,060

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 160,526 § 143.3;5;$ 109423 § 1,570,841 § -

{Contimsed on page 61)
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- CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

f COMBINING BALANCE

. DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECE MBER 31, 2007 '

RESIDENTIAL LAW EAST TOTAL
J REVOLVING  REVOLVING ENFORCEMENT  FIRE TAXI UTILITY - INDUSTRIAL CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL
LOAN LOAN RESTRICTED GRANT SYSTEM DIVIDEND PARK TELEVISION  IMPROVEMENT REVENUE

Z FUND FUND REVENUE FUND FUND ~_ FUND  _IMPROVEMENT ___FUND DISTRICT FUNDS
$ 28599 % 157,280 $ 16,201 § 172°$ -3 430128 132625$ 115117 § 17,247 '$ 1,809,252

[

H - 9,972 - 3,767 - - - 48,753 94,625
83,660 102,966 - - . - - 1,040,747
} - - - 2,583 2,583
- .- - 2,581 - 6,470
16,331 -~ 17709 - - 134,040

§ 112,259 §_ 260,246 $ 42,504 $ 1728 121,476 8§ 243.012 § 1326258 117,698 § 68,583 $ 3.087.717

_____

3 ~$ =% 10578 -3 6303 -3 -3 107 ~$ 2768
iﬁf -- - -- 83,428 - - 206 -- 83,634
L 13 - e - - . - 13
- -- 21,728 -- 5,100 - -- -- 69,422 142,220

) -- 13 32,235 - 95,337 - -- 10,377 69,422 253,635
I 112,253 260,233 10,269 172 26,139 - -- 2,581 -- 2,052,025
243,012 132,625 . 104,740 - 782,896

} - - - - - . - - (839) (839)
112259 260,233 10,269 172 26,139 243012 132,625 107,321 (839) 2834082
i $ 112,259 § 260,246 $ 42504 §- 1723 121476 § 243012 § 1326258 117698 $ 63,583 § 3.087.717
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN .
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET Ll

DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS S
DECEMBER 31, 2007

PARKS & REG WATER

STREET URBAN STORM FIRE A CAPITAL MAIN ]
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT ~ SEWER  PROTECTION  ARPORT  PROJECTS  CONSTR il
: FUND FUND CONSTR FUND OUTLAY FUND OUTLAY 3
ASSETS ' =
Cash and equivalents $ 610,404 § - 3 44224385 274220 % 33898 % 44,582 § - {
Receivables '
Taxes - 359,611 - - - 87,534 108,586
Prepaid expenses 2,797 -- - - -
Dug from
Other funds - 2,511 - - - - -
Other governments - - ;: I
TOTAL ASSETS A $ 9728128 2511 $ 4422033 2742008 1214328 153,168 - 1
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 7
Accounts payable _ $ 57,797 $ 40 § 8285%  17827% - $ - § 95 |
Bug to
Other funds - 4625 - - -- - 15,469 , '{
Other governments 71 - - - - - - B
Deferred revenues 486,828 - - - 18,500 147,000 --
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 544, 846 5,035 8.285 17,821 118,500 147.000 15,564 -
2]
FUND BALANCES . -
Reserved 427,956 - - . -- 2,932 6,163 - i
Unreserved . - (
Designated - - 433,958 256,393 -
Undesignated - (2,524) .- - - (15,564) 1
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 427,966 (2.524) 433,958 256,393 2932 6.168 (15,5643 U
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND -
FUND BALANCES $ 972,812 § 2511 § 44;;,;4_,3;5 2742208 1N4323 153168 § - %
(Centinued on page 63) '
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o : _ CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
[ ‘ COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
o DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
f [ DECEMBER 31, 2007
. T.ID.#3 TID.#4 ) T..D. # 5 TID. #7 TID. #8 CITY uw TOTAL
£ TOWER TLD. #2 DOWNTOWN TID. #6 MILL YELLOWSTONE  NORTHWAY HALL BUILDING/ - CAPITAL
l HALL PURDY PUB FlGI CREEK BHSINESS MALL REMODLING  REMODLING PROJECTS
FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PARKWAY FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
I $ 1556708 1024693 I ~$ 4739898 ~$ 105591 § ~$ 2,018,066
1867 74004 432,447 . 121,453 - 27,927 W74 60572 1288665
{ I - - - - - 453 - - 3,250
. - N N N - - - - 2511
I Iy 521y
1573378 176563 8 432447 § - § 121453 5 4794428 27607 § 120365% 112700 § 3,594,629
i $_ 157337 § 176,563 _ § 1203653 27095 3.594.629
$ -3 -3 -3 -3 ~$ 15713 21§ 65489 ~$  1658%
- 1,901,772 32005 1,548,005 - 13,85 - 18477 3,532,206
] oL T T
_ 147,009 100305 585,431 | - 164.418 . 37.807 20000 82000 1889338
r} 147049 100305 2.487.903 32005 1712473 15711 51,981 85489 98477 5587600
U 10288 76258 - . . 153 - - - 524,065
- . N - U 14232 739,459
- (2,054.756) (32.005) ___(1,590.970) 163278 (23.95) . - (3256.495)
[ | 10288 76258 (2.054.756) (32005 (1.590.970) 163,731 (23950 34%T6 1423  (1992.97)
|
I $ 157337 % 1765638 432447 § - § 124538 4794423 27927 § 1203658 . 112709  3.504.620
P
H
.
i
{
-
[ |
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

PERMANENT TOTAL

_ FUND  NONMAJOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL PERPETUAL  GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS CARE FUNDS
REVENUE .
Taxes 3 370,028 § 1,699,217 % - - 2,069,245
Intergovernmental revenues 479,567 1,433,123 -- 1,862,690 °
Licenses and permits 179,674 -- 179,674
Public charges for services 67,822 52,137 11,003 130,962
Other revenue - 188,117 985,735 — 8501 1,182,353
TOTAL REVENUES 1,235,208 4,170,212 19,504 5,424,924
EXPENDITURES
Current : )
General government : 143,521 - - 143,521
Public safety 91,466 - - 91,466
Public works 317,315 - - 17,315
Culture, recreation and education 246,543 - -- 246,543
CGonservation and development 185,177 52,420 . 231,597
~ Capital outlay 174,207 5,047,830 -- 5,222,037
Inferest and fiscal charges : -- 20,922 -- 20,922
" TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,158,229 5121,172 - 6,279,401
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 76,979 {350,960) 19,504 (854,471
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 169,010 2,776,154 - 2,945,164
Transfers out (168,838) (1,150,235 (850D {1,327.574)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 172 1,625,919 (8,501) 1,617,590
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 77,151 674,959 11,003 763,113
FUND BALANGES AT BEGINMING OF YEAR ' 2,756,931 (2,667,930 175,864 264 865

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR b 2834082 § (1,992971) § 186,867 § 1027978




- CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
‘ COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
o DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS '
: f YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
CONVENTION QOMMUNITY COMMERCIAL
ROOM & VISITORS  DEVELOPMENT ECONOMIC REHAB
3 r TAX BUREAY BLOCK DEVELOPMENT  REVOLYING
FUND FUND GRANT EUND LOAN
- REVENUE .
3 | Taxes $ 298206 $ - $ -3 49,288 $
o Intergovernmental revenues - -- -- -
- Licenses and permits
t Public charges for services -- -- -
: Other revenue - 71.605 - 64,259 -
) TOTAL REVENUES 298,206 71,605 - 113,547
" EXPENDITURES
Current
3 General government
o Public safety
r Public works - -
i l Culture, recreation and education _ 27,162 219,381 -- -
Conservation and development . - 111,434 9,000
S Capital outfay 93,296 . -- - - --
5] TOTAL EXPENDITURES 120,458 219,381 o 111,434 9,000
r EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
| TJ EXPENDITURES 177,748 (147,776 - 2,113 (9,000)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 168,838
Transfers out (168,838) =
“ TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {168,838) 168,838
i
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8,910 21,062 - 2113 (3,000)
{ .
{[ FUND BALANGES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 151,616 124,820 109,423 1,524,947 9,000
[ FUND BALANCES AT END GF YEAR § 160526 § 145882 § 109,423 § 1,527,060 : --
1 | —
{“} | {Continued on page 86)
P
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN 0
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

RESIDENTIAL LAW EAST TOTAL
REVOLVING ~ REVOLVING ENFORCEMENT  FIRE TAXI UTILITY  INDUSTRIAL CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL . -
LOAN LOAN RESTRICTED ~ GRANT ~ SYSTEM  DNIDEND  PARK TELEVISION  IMPROVEMENT ~ REVENUE | {
FUND FUND REVENUE FUND FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT ___ FUND DISTRICT FUNDS )
3 -3 -3 -3 - $ 254§ - $ -3 -3 - $ 370028 {
- - 91,466 - 338,101 - - - - 429567
- - 179,674 - 179,674 )
- 4,054 - - - w - 63,768 67,822 | 3
3,760 873 . 34,707 - 12,780 .- 133 188117
3,760 96,393 -~ 395342 - 12,780 179,674 63,901 1235208 ¢
. 143,521 - wE ||
91,466 - .- - - . 91,466
- 317,315 - - . - 317,315 %
. - - - - - 246583 | |
13 - - - - 64,730 185177
- .- . 80,631 - - 280 .- 174207 1
13 91,466 - 397946 - - 143,801 64,730 1158229 | |
3,747 4,997 - (2,604) - 12,780 35,873 (899} 76,979
a
172 - - . - . 169,010 | |
. - - - - (168,838)
(172 - - - - - 172
3,747 4,927 172 (2,608) - - 12,780 35873 (829) 77,151
L [
112250 256,486 5,342 .- 28,743 243,012 119,845 71,448 (10) _ 2756931 | |

$ 112259 § 260233 § 10,269 $ 172 § 26139 § 243012 § 132626 § 107,321 § (839) § 2,834,082

3
d
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

PARKS & REC WATER
STREET URBAN STORM FIRE CAPITAL MAIN
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SEWER PROTECTION AIRPORT PROJECTS CONSTR
FUND FUND CONSTR FUND QUTLAY FUND QUTLAY
REVENUE
Tanes $ 367,900 $ - § 221,988 - $ 105,000 §
Intergovernmental reventies 52,108 3,832 1,335,406
Pubtic charges for services - -
Other revenue 620,975 - - 331.065
TOTAL REVENUES 1.040.983 225,820 1,335,406 442,065
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development -- - - - - - -
Capital outlay 1,974,472 2,511 446,190 133,070 1,350,801 447,103 179,018
interest and fiscal charges 10,973 -- -- 3,50 - -- --
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1.985.445 2,511 446,190 136,371 1,350,801 447,103 179,018
EXCESS OF REVENUES |
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (944,462) (2511} {220,370y (136,371 {15,395) (5.038) (179,018
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debi - - - - -- --
Transfers in 932918 27,140 392,000 392,561 540 175719
Transfers out - (226,995) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 937918 27.140 165,005 392,561 540 175,18
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (11,544) 24,629 (55,365) 256,190 (15,395) (4,498) (3,299)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 439.510 (27.153) 489,323 203 18,327 10,666 (12,265)
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 3 427966 § - (2.524) § 433958 § 256303 § 2932 § 6168 § (15564)
(Continued on page 68}
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

TID. #3 T.D. #4 * TAD. #5 TID. &7 T.D. #8 Gy uw TOTAL

TOWER TID. #2 DOWNTOWN TID. #6 MILL YELLOWSTONE NORTHWAY HALL BUILDING/ CAPITAL
HALL PURDY PUB FIGI - .CREEK BUSINESS MALL REMODLING  REMODLING PROJECTS i
FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PARKWAY FUND- FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

$ 2258 100411 % 612607 $ ~ 3 1902 § .3 < § N0 46b S 1699217
6 55 2073 3693 8,900 . . . 1433123

- - - - . 52137 2137 )

27,595 . . . 100 . ; . - 7% |
20905 10L4% 641,680 3693 165,907 - B 0000 93301 1170212

15 156 - 15 259 , . 51,693 52420 7

259 - 634 292 470 728 ImET 66902 50780 |
- . . . . 6,618 . } . 2092

15 15 259 1% 893 209,118 28 ISER U85 G12L2 [

20750 101300 641,421 3537 165000 (298118) 78 (63672) (25090 (950.960) |

. . . . . 764,276 . 91,000 Y TR
09 (95 (63565) (404 (16L180) . ; - . (1150235)

0318 (955 (631.565) @woMy (618D 764076 . 91,000 . 1625919 | |
8,23 1,765 3,856 07) 3,87 165,158 % W3 (2590 674,950

1452 70493 (2058612 (31498) _ (1.594797) (42 (2328) 7548 30506 (2BET.O30)

$ 10288 5 76258 8 QOIS (005§ (1LS000)S 46373 S (B9NS 876 § 14232 §  (199297) |
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FUNDS
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
ROOM TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAE AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Public accomodation taxes 3 266455 § 266,455 § 298,206 § 31,751
TOTAL REVENUES 266,455 266,455 298,208 31,751
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture_, recreation and education
Parks -- - 27,162 (27,162)
Capital outlay
Parks 107.000 107,000 93,296 13,704
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 107,000 107,000 120,458 {13,458)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 159,455 159,455 177.748 (18,293)
OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (151,000) {151,000 {168.838) {17.838)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (151,000 {151,000) (168.338) (17,838)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8,455 8,455 8910 (455)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 151,616 151,616 151,616
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR h) 160,071 $ 160,071 § 160.526_$ (455)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN _ : -

CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU SPECIAL REVENUE FUND _ :

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE o
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL . FAVORABLE ]
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS __ _(UNFAVORARLE) '
REVENUE ' |
Miscellaneous 2
Interest $ 73,100 § 73.100 '$ 71,605 § (1.495) .
TOTAL REVENUES 73,100 73,100 71,605 (1.495) -y
EXPENDITURES
Current .
Culture, recreation and education i :
Culture 235,098 235,088 219,381 15,717
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 235,098 235,098 219,381 15,717 J]
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (161,998) (161.998) (147.776) 14,222
.
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ' L
Transfers in 151.000 151,000 168,838 17.838
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 151,000 151,000 168,838 17.838 )
| L
NET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCES (10,998) (10,998) 21,062 32,060
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR : 124,820 124,820 124,820

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $. 113822 § 113,822 § 145,382 § 32,060
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
- TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

BUDGET AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL

FINAL

ACTUAL

VARTANCE
FAVORABLE

AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)

109,423

109,423

109,473

1094238

109,423

109,423 §
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

‘ VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL ~ FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABI E)
REVENUES
Taxes :
General property taxes $ 49,288 $ 49,288 § 49,288 §
Miscellaneous '
Interest _ 61,810 61,810 64,25 2449
TOTAL REVENUES 111,098 111,098 113,547 2449
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development 111,098 111,098 111,434 (336
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 111,098 111,008 111,434 (336)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -- -- 2113 2113
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fransfers in
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 2,113 2,113
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,524,947 1,524,947 1,524,947
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 1,524,947 § 1,524.947 § 1,527,060 $ 2,113
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMMERCIAL REHAB REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND ‘
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLF)
REVENUES
Licenses and parmits 3 - § - 3 - 3
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development - 9,000 9,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -- 9,000 9,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ' - {9,000) (9,000)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,000 9,000 9,000
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 9,000 $ - 3 - § --
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RESIDENTIAL REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
- SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ' ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES
Miscellaneous

Interest $ - -3 -3 --$
TOTAL REVENUES ' - - -

EXPENDITURES
Conservation and development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR | 112,258 112,259 112,259

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 112,259 § 112,259 § 112,259 § -
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- REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

‘ CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

VARIANCE
| ] ’ BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
M REVENUES
B Miscellaneous
Interest $ 2000 % 2000 § 3760 § 1,760
TOTAL REVENUES 2,000 2,000 3,760 1,760
EXPENDITURES
| Current
1 Conservation and development
- Eeonomic development 275 215 13 262
gf B TOTAL EXPENDITURES 275 275 i3 262
1 .
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ' 1,725 1725 3747 2,022
{ OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
[ TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ‘1,725 1,725 3747 2,022
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR - 256,486 256,486 256,486
E FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 258211 § 258,211 § 260,233 § 2,022
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Taxes $ - % -$ 91,466 $ 91,466
Public charges for services 1,341 - -- 4054 4054
Other revenue
Interest -- - 873 873
TOTAL REVENUES , 3 1341 % - § 96,393 3 96,393
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Law enforcement - -- 91,466 (91,466)
Capital outlay
Law enforcement 13,124 -- o --
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' 13,124 -- 91,466 (91.466)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (11,783) .- 4,927 4927
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5342 5342 5,342
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (6.441) § 5342 § 10,269 $ 4,927
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
FIRE GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Federal grants $ -3 -3 -3
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutiay
Public safety
Fire prevention
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in g 26 172 g6
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ' 7 86 8 172 86

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 86 86 172 %

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 869 86 $ 1728 _86
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN Ol

TAXI SYSTEM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND . 2

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS _(UNFAVORABLEY
REVENUES
Taxes $ 22534 3 225§ 22534 %
Intergovernmental '
State grants 342,059 342,059 338,101 (3,958)
Interest - .- 34,707 34,707
TOTAL REVENUES 364,593 364,593 395,342 30.749
EXPENDITURES
- Current
Conservation and development _
Economic development _ 324,593 324,593 317,315 7,218
Capital outlay
Automotive equipment 25,000 25,000 80,631 (55,631)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 349,593 349,593 397,946 (48,353
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGCES 15,000 15,000 (2,600 (17,604)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR : 28,743 28743 28743
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 8 B33 43,743 § 26,139 § (17.604)

,,,,,
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN.
UTILITY DIVIDEND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out ' 3 -3 -3 -3
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 243,012 243,012 243,012
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 243.012 § 243 012 $ 243,012 3 -
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“CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK SPEGIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND C.HANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Other revenue
Sales of equipment
TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)

EXPENDITURES
Current
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UéES)
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURGES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

, VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS ___(UNFAVORABLE)

$ .8 -3 12780 § 12,780
12780 12,780

12780 12,780

12,780 12,780

119,845 119,845 119.845
$ 119,845 $ 12,780
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CABLE TELEVISION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Licenses and permits
Cable franchise fegs : 3 168,572 § 168,572 § 179,674 § 11,102
TOTAL REVENUES 168,572 168,572 179,674 11,102
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Cable television : 162,972 142,740 143,521 {781)
Capital outlay
Cable television 5,200 25432 280 25,152
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 168,172 168,172 143,801 24,371
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 400 4] 35,873 35473
FUND BALANGE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 71,448 71,448 71,448
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 71,848 § 71,848 § 107321 § 35,473
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BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUES
- Public charges for services
~ Economic development
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE [N FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE

- BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
3 65,000 $ 65,000 $ 63,768 $ (1,232)
200 200 133 {67)
65,200 65,200 £3,901 (1,299)
65,000 65,000 64,730 270
55,000 65,000 64,730 270
200 200 (829) (1,029)

(10) (10) | (10

$ 190 § 190§ (839) § {1,029
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FUNDS



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STREET CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS _(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE '
Taxes
General property. $ 367,900 § 367,900 §$ 367,900 $
Intergovernmental :
State grants - - 52,108 ©B2108
Public charges for services
Highway maintenance and construction fees 10,527
Other Revenue :
Contributions and donations -- 620,975 620,975
TOTAL REVENUES ' 378,421 367,900 1,040,983 673,083
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay .
Public works : - 1,067,900 1,292,300 1,974,472 (681,572)
Deht service '

Interest and fiscal charges 14,918 14,918 10,973 3.945
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,082,818 1,307,818 1,985,445 (677.627)
EXCESS OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (704,391 (939,918) (944.462) (4,548
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
tssuance of long-term debt 707,918 707,918 .- (707,918)
Transfers in ' 225,000 932,918 707,918
Transfers out (47.000) - -- -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 660,918 932,918 932918
. NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (43,473) {7,000) (11,548 (4,540)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 439,510 439,510 439,510
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 396,037 $ 432,510 § 427,966 % {4.514)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
URBAN DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

_ VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORJGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Intergovernmental
Economic development grants ' 3 - 3 - § - 3
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Capital outlay , :
tUrban development - - 2.5 (2511)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -- - 251 (2,511)
EXCESS OF REVENUES _
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -- - (2,511) (2.511)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 27,140 27,140 27,140
Transfers out (44.611) -- =
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (17.471) 27,140 27,140
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (17,471) 27,140 24,829 {2,511)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR {27.153) (27,153) {27,153)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (44,629) § (a3 $ (2524) § (2,511)
-84-
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN | :
STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLF})
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 221988 § 221,988 § 221,988 §
Intergovernmental revenues

State grants -- - 3,832 3832

TOTAL REVENUES . 221988 221,988 225,820 3.832
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay . .

Public works 559,972 517,977 446,190 71,787
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 559,972 517.9717 446,190 71,787
EXCESS OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ’ {337,984) (295,989) (220,370} 75,619
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _
Issuance of long-term debt 392,000 392,000 - (392,000)
Transfers in 47,000 - 392,000 392,000
Transfers out - {226,995} (226.995) --
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) 439,000 165,005 165,005
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES _ 101,016 (130,984) {55,365) - 75619
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 489,323 489,323 489,373
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 590,339 § 358.339 $ 433,958 § 75,619
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
FIRE PROTECTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF HEVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Fire protection 3 750,000 § 776,160 § 133,070 $ 643,080
Interest 4,431 4431 3,301 1,180
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 754,481 780,641 136,371 644,270
EXCESS OF REVENUES :
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 754,48 780,641 136,371 (644,270)
OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES) .
Transfers in - 13.080 392,561 379,481
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -- 13,080 392,561 - 379.481
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (754,481) (767,561) 256,190 (1,023,751)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 203 203 203

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

$ (754.278) §  (767,358) $ 266,393 §  (1,023,751)
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» CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
i AIRPORT OUTLAY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
- - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
[ FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
r VARIANCE
I BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
" ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
) REVENUES _
] Intergovernmental $ - - § 1335406 § 1335406
TOTAL REVENUES - - 1,335,406 1,335,406
il EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay _
ol Public works 3750 16.000 1,350,801 {1,334.801)
} TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3.750 16,000 1,350,801 (1,334.801)
|] EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (3,750) (16,000) (15.395) (605)
: OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
[ ‘Issuance of long-term debt 318,000
L J TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 318,000
5 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGCES 314,250 (16,000) (15,395) 605
U
} FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,327 18,327 18,327
“ FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR § 332577 § 2,327 § 2@,3;{ 605
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PARKS / RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Taxes
Other revenue
Other
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

. Capital outlay

Parks outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
TOTAL OTHER FINAMCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUINTS {UNFAVORABLE)
$ 105000 $ 105000 $ 105,000 $
15,000 - 337,065 337,065
120,000 105,000 442,065 337.065
130,000 130,540 847,103 (316.563)
130,000 130,540 247,103 (316.563)
(10,000) (25,540) (5.038) 20,502
2379 540 540
2379 540 540
(7,621) (25,000) (4,498) 20,502
10,666 10,666 10,666
$ 3045 §  (1433D)§ 6,168 $ 20,502
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REVENUE

Taxes

Other
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban devefopment
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

'EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES
Issuance of long-term debt
Transfers in
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN _
WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 '

. VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAYORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
$ $ - § - $
160,000 160,000 179.018 (19.018)
160,000 160,800 179,018 (19.018)
(160,000) (160,000) (179,018) (19,018)
160,000 160,000 - (160,000)
15,719 15,719 175,719 160,000
175,719 175,719 175,719 -
15,719 15,719 (3,299 (19,018)
(12,265) (12.265) (12.26%)
$ 345 % 3454 § (15,564) $ (19,018)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

T.L.D. NO. 3 (TOWER HALL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Taxes
General property -
Intergovernmental
State shared grants
Other revenue
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Operating transfers out
TOTAL QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOUNTS “ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  _(UNFAVORABLE)
2,206 $ 2,206 $ 2245 § 39
95 95 66 (29)
18,769 18,769 27,595 8,876
21,070 21,070 29,906 8836
156 156 156
156 156 156
20914 20914 . 29,750 8,836
(20,914 (20.914) (20,914)
(20914) (20.914) _ (20918
8,836 8,836
1,452 1,452 1,452
1452 § 1452 § 10,288 § 8.836

-90-

o
!




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

T.1D. NO. 2 (PURDY SCHOOL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
intergovernmental
Other state shared taxes
- TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
* OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out
- TOTAL GTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAYORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
99,626 $ 99,626 $ 101,411 § 1,785
65 65 45 (20)
99,691 99,691 101,456 1,765
156 156 156
156 156 15%
99,535 99,535 101,300 1,765
{98,535 (99,535) - (99,535
(99,535) (99,535 (99,535)
1,765 1,765
74,493 74,493 74,493
74493 § 74493 § 76,258 § 1,765
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN -

T.LD. NO. 4 (DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND U

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL o
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 e

VARIANCE 1
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE }
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS _(UNFAVORABLE) '
REVENUE ' ' ]
Taxes L)
General property $ 601,824 § 601,824 § 612807 $ 10,783
Intergovernmental - ' i
Other state shared taxes 36,000 36,000 29,073 (6,929 [
TOTAL REVENUES £37.824 637,824 641,680 3,858 :
M
" EXPENDITURES L
Capital outlay
Conservation and development 259 259 259 = .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 259 259 259 - .
EXCESS OF REVENUES {m
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 637,565 637,565 641,421 3,85 b
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) o
Operating transfers out (637,565) (637,565) (637.565) - B
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (837,565) (837 565) {637.565)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES . - 3,856 3,856 ;
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (2,058,612) (2,058,612) (2.058,612) -
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (2.058.612) § (2.058.612) §  (2.054.756) § 3.856

i 1
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN -
T.LD. NO. 6 (FIGI'S) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
Intergovernmental
Other state shared taxes
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)
" NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

" FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
QRIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
5 4200 § 4200 3 3693 § (507)
4,200 4,00 3693 (507)
15 15 156
156 15 156
4,004 4,004 3,537 (507)
(4,044) (400 (4,08
(4,004) (4,00) (4,040)
(507) (507)
(31,498) (31,498) (31.498)
S (31498)3  (G1498)S  (32.005)§ (507)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.LD. NO. 5 (MILL CREEK BUSINESS PARK} CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE}
REVENUE '
Taxes
General property _ 3 154,141 $ 154,141 § 156,902 3 2,761
Intergovernmental _
QOther state shared revenues 7,300 7,300 8,900 1,600
Miscellaneous
Miscetlaneous 100 100 100 --
TOTAL REVENUES . 161,541 161,541 165,902 4,361
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development 259 259 259
Capital outlay
Public works , - -- 634 (634
TOTAL EXPENDITURES : 258 259 293 (634)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 161,282 161,282 165,009 3727
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (HSES)
Operating transfers out (161,187 (161,182 (161,18%)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) (161,182 (161,182) (161,182
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 100 100 3,827 3,727
- FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR {1,594.797) (1,584,797 (1,594,797)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (1.594697) 8 (1.594.697) % _(1.590,970) § 3,727
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.LD. NO. 7 (YELLOWSTONE INDUSTRIAL PARK) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL : AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
] EXPENDITURES
'j Capital outlay .
Conservation and development 3 755,259 § 755,259 3 292,470 § 462,789
Interest and fiscal charges 9,017 9.017 6,648 2,369
} TOTAL EXPENDITURES 764,276 764,276 299,118 465,158
EXCESS OF REVENUES :
]} OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (764,276) (764,276) (299,118) 465,158
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
} Operating transfers in - .- 764,276 (764.276)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURGES (USES) - . - 764,776 764,276
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (764,276) (764,276) 465,158 {1,229,434)
f FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (1.421) (1.427) (1,421
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (765.703) §  (765.703) § 463.731 §  1.229.434
['"" .
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

T.1.D. NO. 8 (NORTHWAY MALL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND .
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Conservation and development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANGE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOLUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLF)
$ 484,650 § 484,650 3 728 % 433.922
484,650 484,650 728 483,922
(484,650 (484,650) (728) 433,922

(23.226) (23.226) {23.226)

$ (507,876) §  (507.876) § (23.950) § 483,922
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
" CITY HALL REMODLING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAYORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS __ (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
" Taxes
General property $ 90,000 $ 90,000 90,000 %
TOTAL REVENUES 90,000 90,000 90,000
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
General government 95,000 186,000 153,672 32,328
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 95,000 186,000 153,672 32328
EXCESS OF REVENUES '
QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,000 {96,000) (63.672) 32,328
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 91,000 91,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 91,000 91,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {5,000) (5,000) 27,328 32,328
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,508 7,548 7.548
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR - § 2508 % 2,548 § 34,876 § 32,328
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
UW BUILDING/REMODELING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2007

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
Pubtic charges for services
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
UW Wood County campus
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
issuance of long-term debt

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURGES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
_BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL -AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
$ M6t s M6 S 1,164 $ .
3,548 3,548 52137 48,589
n112 w12 93.301 (48,589)
69,798 69,798 118,595 (48,797)
63,798 69.798 118,595 (48.797)
(25,086) (25.086) (25.29) (208)
(25,086) (25,086) (25,29) (208)
39.5%6 39,526 30,526
$ 14090 § 1440 8 14232 § (208)
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NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS



CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

-99-

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL
_ SERWICES
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 280,234
Accounts receivable 121,178
Prepaid expenses 3,639
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 405,051
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets, at cost
Buiidings, systems and equipment 132,125
Less accumulated depreciation (408.214)
Net capital assets 323911
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 323,911
TOTAL ASSETS $ 728,962
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 22,063
Accrued salaries, wages and compensated absences 12,464
" Current portion of long-term deht 2,542
Deferred revenues 1,250
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 38,319
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term obligations g81.757
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 81,757
TOTAL LIABILITIES 126,076
- NET ASSETS :
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 323,91
Unrestricted 278975
TOTAL NET ASSETS 602,886
TOTAL LIABILETIES AND NET ASSETS 8 728,962




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest income
Miscellaneous incoime
Interest and fiscal charges
Other miseellansous income
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

'CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

- 100 -

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL

— SERVICES -

3 976570

801,815
43,785
845,600

130,970

25

2,995

(5,018)
(7.983)
(398

120,989

120,985

481,897

602,886




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers and vendors
Payments to employees
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to govemnmental funds
TOTAL CASH FLOWS USED IN NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING AGTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest paid
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds
Contributions
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) iN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO CASH PROVIDED BY (USED iNy ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) '
Adjustments io reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation charged to depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase {decrease} in current liabilifies
Accounts payable
Other accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

- 101 -

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL
SERVICES

$ 973,816
(134,781)
661,378

177,657

(179,507)
(5,018)
(2,242)
2,995

{183,772)

25
25

(6,090)

286,324

S 280234

$ 130,970
43,785
(2,754)

(3,565)

5,297
3,924

$ 177,657




FIDUCIARY
FUNDS



......

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents’
Investments

Taxes receivable

- Other receivahles

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
' DECEMBER 31, 2007

AGENCY FUNDS
PAYROLL PERFORMANCE ~ PROPERTY SALES
- DEDUCTIQNS BONDS TAX TAX TOTAL
§ 28565 14708 43036328 784% 4591532
- 13,800 - - 13,800
= 12,143,298 12,143,298
3.845 - 3,805

TOTAL ASSETS 3 289,491 § 15270 $ 16,446,930 § 7843 16,752,475
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable t -3 15,270 $ 7,788 § -3 23,058
Other accrued expenses 289,491 - - 289,491
-Due to other funds - -- - - --
Due to other governments -- -- 16,439,142 784 16,439,926

TOTAL LIABILITIES 283491 15,270 16,446,930 184 16,752,475
NET ASSETS
Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 289491 § 15270 § 16,446,930 § 784 § 16,752,475
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Payroll Deductions
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions

Performance Bonds
ASSETS
Cash and Investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Property Tax
ASSETS

Cash
Taxes Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
TOTAL LIABILITIES

State of Wisconsin
ASSETS
Cash

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments

TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Taxes Receivable
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions
Due to Other Govemments
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

BALANCE BALANCE
$1/07 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 12/31/07
$ 200664  § 2,196,751 2,201,769 285,646
4,709 . 36,030 37,794 3,845
$ 206373 § 2,233,681 2,230,568 289,491
$ 205373 & 2,168,835 2174717 280,491
$ 14870 § 800 400 15,270
$ 14870  § 400 : 15,270
$ 7281424 § 25562720 25,280,001 7,564,143
21,557,602 30,435,446 30,613,085 21,359,963
§ 28819,006 §  55006,166 55,803,086 28,924,106
$ 5468 § 15,507 13,277 7,788
28,813,558 28,040,905 28,838,145 28,916,318
§ 28819006 §  28,056,02 28,851,422 28,924,106
$ 76§ 11,281 11,262 785
$ 16§ 11,281 11,262 785
$  7SeTT4 8 217715R2 27,493,432 7,865,844
21,587,602 30,435,446 30,613,085 21,359,963
4709 36,930 37,794 3,845
§ 29130035 5 68243028 58,144,311 29,229,652
8 2038  $ 15,997 13,277 23,058
295,373 2,168,835 2,174,717 289,491
28,814,304 28,952,188 28,849,407 28,917,103
§ 20130085 5 31137018 31,087,401 29,229,652
-103- -
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101 West 29th Street | PO, Box 840 | Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449-0840

W o« comprpanNny, LLP

Certified Public Accountants | Business Advisors

Real Solutions. Real Service.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Common Gouncil
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin (*City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, and
have issued our report thereon dated July 15, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion ot compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an apinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Intetnai Contro! Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial stafements and not o provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the interal
control companents does not reduce to a relatively low leve! the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be materiat in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal conirot over financial reporting and its operations that we consider to
be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Council and management of the Clty and is not intended to be, and should
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M‘;W/MIE%ZﬁCW, LLP

Marshfield, Wisconsin
July 15, 2008
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Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assels

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total busihess-type activities net assets

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
Last Five Fiscal Years

Schedule 1

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$ 30828700 § 35056355 § 38,526,738 38,617 647 40,985,589
4,753,191 4,660,825 4,775,179 5,276,019 8,674,245
5,894,861 1,214,633 774,524 3,675,874 2,868,674
$ 41476842 § 41831813 § 44,076 441 47,469,540 52,528 508
$ 54,806,850 % 58,589,971_$ 58,351,590 56,130,553 62,317,775
3,710,295 3,274,438 3,584,769 B, 759,289 5,814,338
2,735,264 2,054,765 5,344,061 7,740,207 7,144,508
$ 61,252,418 § 64,819,204 $ 67,280,420 72,630,139 75,276,622
$ 85635849 $ 94546326 § 96,878,328 94,648,200 103,308,364
8,463,486 7,935,263 8,359,948 14,035,308 " 14,488,583
8,630,125 4,169,428 6,118,585 11,416,171 10,013,183
$ 102729260 $ 106,651,017 § 111,356,861 120,099,679 127,805,130

Note: The city began fo report acerual information when it implemented GASB Statemenit 34 in fiscal year 2003.




EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
General government
Pubfic safety
Pubic works
Health and human services
Conservation and development
Culture, recreation, and education
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:
. Electric
Water
Wastewater
EMS
Siorm Water
Communications
Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary govarnment expenses

PROGRAM REVENUES
Govemmental aclivities:
Chargaes for servicas:
Gengral govemment
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Conservation and develcpment
Culture, recreation and education
Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental aclivities program revenues
Business-lype acfivities:
Charges for services:
Elactric
Water
Wastewater
EMS
Storm Water
Communications
Operating grants and contiibutions
Total business-type acfivities program revenues

Total primary government program revesniues

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Schedule 2

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$ 2640966 § 2595666 § 2636409 5 2837959 § 3,003,721
7,123,740 7,322,236 7,173,069 7,049,167 7,139,830
5,896,876 5,947,439 6,352,456 6,562,636 7,140,078
147,601 141,037 142,194 145,191 150,081
1,992,523 760,017 1,073,530 808,118 3,400,317
3,374,193 3,036,630 3,226,601 3,153,481 742,530
1,286,748 1,148,804 1,053,371 1,057,498 045,708
22,472,647 20,951,819 21,657,630 21,612,060 22,522 265
17,255,263 18,547,915 23,715,632 23,155,498 28,000,226
2,266,670 2,087,770 2,198,361 2,243,608 2,526,510
3,169,566 3,199,215 3,405,692 3,524,068 3,618,360
680,833 717,343 763,000 774,251 858,601
92,433 560,026 4,808 - -

" - 21,241 30,818 24,702
23,464,765 25,112,969 30,108,814 20,728,543 35,028,389
45937412 46,064,788 51,766,444 51,340,593 57,550,664
636,549 695,416 695,106 752,306 778,777
280,599 211,929 231,776 241,567 315,359
199,818 172,209 208,158 148,087 249416
103,013 110,797 133,911 113,364 137,203
38,743 49,355 50,985 68,206 304,686
247,905 255,956 272,042 286,341 66,176
2.964,693 3,080,642 2747818 3415092 5,375,168
4,521,320 4,576,304 4,339,794 5025763 7,226,786
18,071,987 19,708,028 24,339,873 24,326,967 28,623,244
2,874,818 2,866,482 2,911,403 2,840,572 3,026,993
4,064,932 4,389,102 4262748 4,605,808 4,482 341
741,667 738,995 - 812,343 840,421 924,049

- 824 - - -

- - 52,053 56,570 56,570

596,884 1,212,103 790,859 2687,493 . 729,069
26,350,288 28,915,534 33,169,279 35,457 831 37,842,266
$ 30871608 % 33481838 § 37509073 $ 40483504 $ 45,069,052

-106 -

[




[
! Schedule 2 - Continued
[
) Fiscal Year
} 2003 2004 2005 2006 3007
NET {EXPENSE)VREVENUE :
= Governmental activities $ (17951327} §  (16,375515) $  (17,317836) § (16586287) $ (15205479
l Business-ype activities: 2,885,523 3,802,565 3,060,465 5,729,288 2,813,867
i J Total primary government net expense $ (15065804} § (12572950) §  (14,257371) §  (10.856908) $ (12,481,618
GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
i } CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Governmental aciivities:
Taxes
- Property taxes $ 8232674 $ 8,830,158 § 11281224 § 11853933 § 11,983,483
% Public accomodation taxes - 239,137 266,823 268,552 298,206
P Other faxes 1,507,516 530,723 120,524 120,326 121,963
State shared revenuas 5,645,480 5,203,370 5,451,033 5,677,253 5,796,398
Interest and investment income 452,431 383,312 424 609 563,694 654,187
Misceffansous 141,198 205,033 237,137 109,476 170,885
Transfers 1,003,634 1,288,753 1274792 . 1,386,151 1,329,331 .
Total gavernmental activities 17,982,942 16,730,486 18,056,142 19,879,385 20,354,453
Ji Busingss-type activities:
i Investment earmings 890,072 467,150 675,541 . 1,006,583 1,161,950
i Property Taxes - 667,478 - - -
Gain on sale of capital assets - 15,998 - - -
_ Transfers (1,003,634} {1,288,753) {1,274,792) (1,386,151} (1,329,331)
; Total businass-type activities {613,562) (138,127) {599,257) {379,568) (167,381)
! Total primary govemment $ 17360380 6 16592350 § 18456801 $ 10509817 § 20,187,072
- CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
1- Governmental activities $ 31615 § 354971 % 1,738,306 8 3,393,008 § 5,058,974
Business-lype activifies 2,271,961 3,664,438 2461,214 5,349,720 2,646,486
Total primary government $ 2,303576 % 4019409 § 4199520 $ 8742818 $ 7,705,460

Note: The city began to report acerual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2004,
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
FUND BALANGES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Schedule 3

Fiscal Year
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 . 2004 2005 2006 2007
General Fund
Reserved $ - $ - 8 - % - 8 - % - $ - % - 8 - § 118412
Unreserved, designated 208,961 4 407 90,587 14,152 62,047 743,835 611,885 534,326 545,481 418,491
Unreserved, undesignated 6,280,420 6,521,015 6,725,669 6,775,134 7,103,998 6,262,681 5,894 481 5,488,251 6,278,496 6,569,455
Total general fund § 6489381 § 6525422 § 6816266 $ 6780286 $ 7166045 $ 7006516 $ 6506366 § 6022577 § 6823987 § 7,104,358
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 914861 $ 1,032,660 $ 1238886 § 1440406 $ 2745609 $ 52303977 § 3470220 $ 3628440 $ 5278720 $ 4,650,895
Unreserved, designated, reported in: ' :
Special revenue 282,540 1,464,131 1,830,752 2,237,568 2,234,959 1,395,127 1,253,986 860,535 710,040 782,896
Capital projects funds (196,776) 856,357 (123,826) 786,889 (520,433) 82,040 138,469 155,148 536,598 739,459
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
Special revenue - - - - - - - (1,341) (10) {839}
Capital projects funds (121,425} {149,385) - - - (3,312,584) (3,851,838) (3,716,620 (3,748,877} (3,256,495)
Total all other governmental funds § 879200 § 3203753 § 3045812 § 4473863 & 4460135 § 3488560 $ 1010837 $ 926162 § 2774371 § 29157168
-108 -
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REVENUES

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeituras

Charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Special agsessments

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Conservation and development
Other public works
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service -
Interest
Principal
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN _
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

Schedule 4

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$ 8333514 § 9,060,137 §$ 9425134 $ 10,243472 § 10403778 §$ 10,741,755 § 0,600,828 § 11,669,225 § 12,244,384 $§ 12,404,111
6,901,616 8,199,297 8,588,342 7,874,637 7,647,193 8,141,905 8,007,428 7,829,179 8,178,745 - 9,778,939
138,660 213,877 202,666 236,640 310,263 358,391 349,784 361,741 359,464 386,347
172,568 153,243 161,443 145,582 146,385 144,742 115,938 115,089 111,511 134,002
944,714 1,613,821 1,122,502 1,193,945 482,938 803,893 767,002 841,483 827,243 1,008,067
279,625 320,208 500,444 313,384 148,892 - - - - -
489,763 312,445 706,767 642,856 897,754 415,819 430,340 183,661 451,081 418,277
1,470,553 1,628,523 1,283,601 1,102,686 1,099,488 902,342 851,698 1,271,842 1,009,631 2,220,057
18,731,013 21,510,551 21,999,799 21,753,202 21,136,602 21,508,847 20,133,018 22,272,320 23,182,059 26,347,890
1,898,478 2,031,298 2,180,011 2,187,983 2,222,403 2,422,536 2,433,613 - 2,698,149 2,656,891 2,886,509
5,802,898 6,290,099 6,471,443 7,071,984 6,622,689 6,943,438 7,143,411 7,224,417 6,842,836 6,891,604
116,975 105,276 114,313 122,510 123,881 129,354 132,291 136,268 140,662 148,944
230,987 287,667 492,403 427,283 934,550 533,726 581,582 986,771 806,118 721,646
4,005,912 4,274,182 4,648,745 4,554,929 4,236,289 4,753,033 4,897,077 5,275,208 5,063,692 5,733,327
2,388,173 2,244,801 2,356,817 2,512,465 2,548,139 2,669,165 2,742,275 2,834,345 2,884,804 3,057,845
7,164,626 6,000,533 6,936,785 4,486,704 6,262,207 5,101,871 3,571,624 4,079,773 4,149,499 5,533,825
817,114 734,732 856,154 982,748 1,024,139 1,249,1 86 1,140,562 903,238 1,038,318 932,975
1,627,424 1,274,700 1,532,591 2,084,571 2,104,869 5,735,630 4,311,821 2,824,211 5,955,762 3,202,824
24,142,588 23,243,988 25,589,262 24,431,177 26,077,166 29,538,039 26,954,256 27,162,375 29,630,582 29,110,498
- (5,411,575) {1,733,437) (3,589,463) {2,677,975) {4,940,474) (8,029,192) (6,821,237} (4,880,055) {6,357,523) (2,762,609)
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: Schedule 4 - Continued
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

" Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modified accrual basis of accounting) <
. Fiscal Year
_ 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ' ,
Long-term debt issued $2079,908 $ 3712811 § 3206725 $ 3,684678 $ 4204055 $ 5640000 $ 2574610 $ 3036799 § 4,685000 § 1,855,000
* Refunding bonds issued - - - - - 2,050,000 1,320,000 - 2,935,989 -

Payment to refunding bond escrow agent - - - .
Sales of general fixed assels - - - - .

© (1,955,000)  {1,320,000) - - -

Transfers in 1,177,974 241,308 743,025 1,137,043 2,000,109 1,896,037 1,588,433 1,142,862 1,063,913 3,878,900
Transfers in (out) - proprietary fund - (10,500} 507,644 388,731 1,006,143 1,003,634 1,288,753 1,274,792 1,386,151 1,329,331
Transfers in-nonexpendable trust fund 32,881 6,557 7,997 5,637 3,306 2,445 2,910 - - -
‘Transfers out {1,169,798} {241,398) (743,025)  (1,137,043)  {(2,000,109)  (1,898482) (1,591,343) (1,142,862) (1,063,913)  (3,878,900)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,120,965 3,708,868 3,722,366 4,079,046 5,303,504 6,738,634 3,863,363 4,311,591 9,007,140 3,184,331
Net change in fund balances $(3,290,610) § 1,975431 § 132903 $ 1401071 $ 363,030 $(1,290,558) $(2,957,874) § (568.464) §$ 2,649617 $ 421,722
Capital outlay, reported above $ 7,164,626 $ 6000533 $ 6936785 § 4486704 $ 6262207 § 5,101,971 $'3,571,624_ $ 4,079,773 $ 4,149499 § 5,533,825
Less items not capitalized - - - - - {1,958,459) (241,915) 142,425 (177,574) {160,943)

Acquisition and construction of capital assete § 7,164,626 § 6,000,533 § 6,936,785 § 4,488,704 5 6,262,207 §$ 3,143,512 §$ 3329700 $ 4222198 $ 3,971,925 § 57372882

Debt service as a percentage _
of noncapital expenditures 14.4% 11.7% 12.8% 15.4% 15.8% 28.5% 23.1% 16.6% 27.4% 17.4%
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Schedule 5
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Total Estimated Taxable Assessed
Agricutture / Total Taxable Direct Actual Valueaasa
Fiscal Residential Commercial Manufacturing Forest/ Swamp Personal Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of
Year Property Property Property Property Property Yalue Rate Value Actual Taxable Value
1998 $ 443511400 $ 185405800 $  34,692300 § 853,900 ¢ 42012770 § 706,566,170 § 10.72 694,367,600 101.757%
1999 462,445,500 182,035,100 35,315,700 1,067,300 33,125,430 713,989,030 10.98 708,487,600 100.777%
2000 471,016,400 209,470,300 38,089,100 621,900 40,087,320 759,585,020 11.29 775,348,700 97.967%
2001 480,887 400 220,589,900 37,036,900 842,500 45,873,120 785,229,820 11.15 848,073,700 92.590%
2002 489,852,300 220,220,200 38,895,500 808,700 4B ATT ATO 807,254,170 11.13 804,114,500 89.287%
2003 612,233,000 280,551,000 48,784,000 1,631,700 53,460,110 996,659,810 9.25 049,867,000 104.926%
2004 628,003 200 378,241,400 46,835,100 1,671,700 72,087,230 1,126,878,630 9.73 1,133,407,900 09.424%
2005 638,215,400 389,356,100 47,212,200 1,572,800 64,347,180 1,140,703,680 9.91 1,179,819,200 96.685%
2006 656,364,000 388,587,000 43,050,900 1,581,700 64,059,890 1,153,643 430 9.91 1,240,171,500 93.023%
2007 662,646,600 395,283,800 41,810,400 1,634,800 67,965,810 1,169,351,410 9.87 1,282,755,200 91.159%

Source: City of Marshfiald Assessor's Office and Finance Departmant,

Notes: Taxable proparty within the City is reassessed once every four yaars on avarage. The Cily is required under section 70.05(5)(d) Wis. stats. to maintain asgsssed values within 10% of equalized {full) value.

Estimated actual taxable (full) value is calcutated by dividing taxable assessed value by those pefcentages. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessad value.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{rata per $1,000 of assessed valug)

Overlapping Rates

Schedule 6

Marshfield

Source: City of Marshfield Assessor's Office and Finance Department.

Marshfield Mid-State Mid-State
_ City- School Technical State of School Technical State of
Fiscal Direct Wood District - College - Wisconsin - Marathon District - College - Wisconsin -
Year Tax Rate County Wood Wood County Marathon Marathon Marathoh
1998 $ 10.72 $ 5.57 889 § 160 § 020 § 530 $ B53 § 154§ 0.12
1999 10.98 565 . B.38 159 0.20 557 8.33 158 0.20
2000 11.29 5.82 8.20 167 021 5.28 7.46 1.52 0.19
2001 11.15 8.13 8.47 1.77 0.22 6.32 8.95 187 0.23
2002 11.13 645 8.94 1.85 023 562 7.98 1.65 020
2003 9.25 461 7.81 1,56 0.19 510 7.1 154 0.19
2004 9.73 485 7.20 1.59 0.20 5.41 7.28 1.61 0.20
2005 9.91 5.12 7.21 1.60 0.19 5.39 716 1.59 0.19
2006 9.91 5.18 7.78 1.62 0.19 5.25 754 157 0.18
2007 9.87 5.26 7.46 1.62 0.19 531 7.28 1.58 0.18

Notes: Overlapping rates presented are those applied to taxable property within the City of Marshfield based on the County the property is located in. The majority of the City is

located in Wood Gounty.
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Taxpayer

Marshfield Clinic

Wal-Mart Development
Badger Housing

Ken Staab Partnerships
Menards Development

V & H Ford Development
Festival Foods Development
Marshfield Door Systems
Northway Malf Development
Wick Building Systems
FlGIS

Marshfield Health Resources
Roehl Trucking

Hub City

Total

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
of Total Gity of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Value Value Value
Tupe of Business
Heatthcara 85,142,200 1 B.14%
Retail Sales Development 21,783,280 2 1.86%
Apartment Complexes 13,954,680 3 1.19% 7,628,640 1.07%
Residential / Commercial Constauction 11,965,970 4 1.02% 6,175,810 0.86%
Home Improvement Retait 11,827,180 5 101%
Auto / Heavy Truck Sales & Service 11,485,370 & 0.98% 5,720,320 0.80%
Food Sales / Office Products 9,937,520 7 0.85%
Wood Doors / Molded Products Manufacturer 9,730,100 8 0.83% 10,852,700 2 1.52%
Shopping Mall 9,536,880 g 0.82% 12,182,270 1 1.71%
Modular Homes / Biiilding Materials 7,884,700 1 0.67% 6,254,500 5 (.88%
Mail Order Gif Distributor - 6,471,640 4 0.91%
Nursing Home - 5,939,600 7 0.83%
Teucking - 4,562,490 9 0.64%
Wholesale Food Distributor - 3,950,130 10 0.55%
$ 203,247,890 17.37% 69,738,100 9.77%

Souree: City of Marshfield Assessor's Office and Finance Depariment

Schedule 7
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Schedule 8 9

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS }
Last Ten Fiscal Years o
R
Vol
Collected within the
Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date 1y
for the Percentage in Subsetquent Percentage i
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
1998 $  TEB4ET8 § 7640490 99.8% $ 15434 § 765504 100.0% E
1999 7,922,679 - 7,879,081 99.5% 44813 7,923,874 100.0%
2000 ' 8684452 8,658,138 99.7% - 31,416 8,689,554 100.1% .
2001 8,875,473 8,835,859 99.6% 34,266 8,870,125 99.9% }
2002 9,166,634 8,108,186 09.4% 33,476 9,141,662 99.7%
2003 9,432,927 9,379,880 89.4% 64,321 9,444,201 100.1% -
2004 11,21 ,144' 11,143,008 89.5% 52,966 11,196,064 100.0% i I
2005 11,766,379 11,746,602 89.8% 38,783 11,785,385 o 100.2% -
2006 11,946,878 11,926,714 99.8% 19,369 11,946,083 100.0% .
2007 12,069,068 12,038,907 99.7% 24,904 12,061,811 099.9% g _ }
|
L
Source: City of Marshtield Finance Department. g : }

o
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Schedule 9
Clty of Marshfield, Wisconsin
Ratios of Net Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Net
General State Trust General Mortgage Total Percentage
* Fiscal Personal QObligation Fund Less Debt Obligation Revenue Capital Primary of Personal Per
Year Population Income Bends Loans Service Fund Debt __Bonds l.eases Government Income Capita
1998 19,984 $ 1,829,708 $ 12,708,678 $ 1,822,623 $ (104,363) $ 14,635,664 $ 13,951,008 $ - $ 28,586,762 1.56% 1,430
1949 19,969 1,963,285 15,134,296 2,066,232 (111,564) 17,312,082 22,910,394 - 40,202 186 2.06% 2,014
2000 18,800 1,994,589 17,167,787 1,894,163 207,949 18,854,001 27,706,498 - 46,560,499 2.33% 2,340

2001 18,887 2,087,594 18,786,134 2,061,342 42,338 20,805,138 26,288,824 - 47,093,962 2.26% 2,493
2002 18,908 2,129,890 20,959,323 2,244,491 1,408,179 21,795,635 26,256,098 - 48,061,733 2.26% 2,541
2003 18,861 2,021,528 23,347,345 2,812,889 1,408,548 24,753,686 26,205,117 168,402 51,218,205 2.31% 2,716
2004 19,012 2,324,893 24,280,183 - 3,411 24,276,772 24,650,673 : 127,051 49,054,496 2.11% 2,580
2005 " 18,258 2,402,993 24,352,815 - 5,490 24,347,325 24,686,147 84,700 49,118,172 2.04% 2,551
-2006 19,420 2,480,487 25,710,226 155,000 39,505 25,825,721 25,965,713 42,350 51,833,784 2.09% 2,669
2007 19,346 2,616,572 24,180,000 155,000 1,887,738 22,447 262 27,928,514 ’ - 50,375,778 2.00% 2,604

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Sources: Personal Incoms information from Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis for Marshfiald-W1 Rapids, W1 Micropolitan SA, web-site address:

_ These ratios are calcufated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year,

B
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Schedule 10

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin

Ratios of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Net Percentage of
General General Actual Taxable
Fiscal Assessed Obligation Less Debt Bonded Vaiue of Per
Year Population Value Bonds Service Fund Debt Property Capita

1998 19,984 $ 707,187,004 $ 14,531,301 $ (104,363) $ 14,635,664 2.07% 732
1999 19,969 713,989,030 17,200,528 (111,564) 17,312,092 2.42% 867
2000 19,900 759,585,020 19,061,950 207,949 18,854,001 2.48% 947
2001 18,887 785,229,820 20,847,476 42,338 20,805,138 2.65% 1,102
2002 18,908 807,254,170 23,203,814 1,408,179 21,795,635 2.70% 1,153
2003 18,861 996,680,310 26,160,234 1,406,548 24,753,686 2.48% 1,312
2004 19,012 1,126,878,630 24,280,183 3,411 24,276,772 2.15% 1,277
2005 19,258 1,140,703,680 24,352,815 5,490 24,347,325 2.13% 1,264
2006 19,420 1,153,643,490 25,865,226 39,505 25,825,721 2.24% 1,330
2007 19,346 1,169,351,410 24,335,000 1,887,738 22,447 262 1.82% 1,160

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

oty
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Govermmental Unit

" Debt repaid with property taxes

Wood County
Marathon County
School District of Marshfield
Mid-State Technical College
Subtotal, overlapping debt
City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Schedule 11
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2007

: Estimated
Debt Percentage
Outstanding Applicable

Estimated
Share of
Direct and
Overlapping
Debt

$ 5,527,697 25.50%
4,568,285 ' 1.10%
24,060,648 66.20%
19,675,000 10.30%
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$ 1,400,563
50,251
15,928,149
2,026,525

19,414,488

22,447,262

$ 41,861,750




Debt limit
Total net debt margin
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of dabt limit

Nota:

Schedule 12

City of Marshfigld, Wisconsin
Legal Debt Margin Information,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Equalized value $1,282,755,200

e T 1

[N AN PR FC—— C———

Debt limit (5% of equalized value) 64,137,760
Debt applicable to limitation:
General obligation debt 24,335,000
Less: Amount set aside for
repayment of general
obfigation debt (1,887,738)
Total net debt applicable to limit 22,447 262
Legal debt margin $ 41,690,498
1998 1999 ‘2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$34,718,380  $35424,380  $38,767435  $39,190,375  $45,205,725  $47,493,350  $56,670,395 § 58900960 $ 62008575 $ 64,137,760
14,635,666 17,312,092 18,854,001 20,636,957 21,795,635 24,763,686 24,276,772 24,347,325 25,825,721 22,447,262
$20,082,714 _$18,112.288  $19.913434 _$18553418 $23410,090 _$22730664 $32,393623 $ 34643,635 _§ 36,182,864 § 41,690,498
42.16% 4B.87% 4B.63% 52.66% 48.21% 52,12% 42.84% 41.27% 41.65% 35.00%
- 118 -
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Scehdule 13

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin
Pledged-Revenue Coverage,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Utility Revenue Bonds

Utility Less: Net
Fiscal Gross Operating Available Debt Service
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
1998 $ 19,737,560 $ 14,530,518 $ 5,207,042 $ 3,770,000 627,051 1.18
1999 20,189,216 15,323,918 4,865,298 1,053,556 464,759 3.20
2000 22,106,025 16,661,698 5,424,327 575,630 645,327 4.44
2001 23,562,489 17,098,854 6,463,635 1,221,805 904,176 3.04
2002 23,535,764 16,901,842 6,633,022 1,442,490 841,355 2.90
2003 25,401,785 18,879,185 6,522,600 1,467,434 845,664 2.82
2004 27,179,689 20,081,297 7,098,392 1,644,445 814,549 2.89
2005 32,171,818 25,441,179 6,730,639 1,704,524 798,304 2.69
20086 32,675,589 24,819,872 7,865,717 1,840,434 783,260 2.99
2007 37,348,078 29,812,581 7,535,497 1,947,198 852,830 2.69

NOTE: Prior to 1998, there was no debt service requirements for the wastewater utility. As such, gross revenues and expenses for
years prior to 1998, do not include the wastewater uiility, ‘

Emergency Medical Services Enterprise fund added in 2002 not included in totals as it has no debt service requirements.

(1) Total revenues (including interest) per financial statements
(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation per financial statements
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Schedule 14

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin
Demographic and Economic Statistics,
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
- Capita
Calendar Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Enroliment Rate
1998 19,984 1,829,708 24,252 4,253 3.8%
1999 19,969 1,953,285 25,833 4142 3.1%
2000 19,900 1,994,589 26,401 4,084 3.3%
2001 18,887 2,087,594 27,621 4,110 3.6%
2002 18,908 2,129,890 28,210 4,038 4.3%
2003 18,861 2,221,528 29,483 4,060 5.3%
2004 19,012 2,324,893 30,208 3,955 5.0%
2005 19,258 2,402,993 31,961 4,086 5.0%
2006 19,420 2,480,487 33,051 4,061 4.8%
2007 19,346 2,516,572 33,950 4,053 4.9%

Sources: Personal Income & Per Capita Personal Income from Depariment of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis for Marshfield - W1 Rapids, WI
Micropolitan SA, web-site address: http://www_.bea.gov/regional/reis/drill.cfm.
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Schedule 15

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

F 2008 1999
L] Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
l . Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
N
Emplover
] Marshfield Clnic 3,609 1 20.27% 2575 1 22.31%
o Saint Joseph's Hospital 2,173 2 12.21% 1,904 2 16.50%
Roehl Transport, inc. 2,062 3 11.58% 1,284 -3 11.12%
Marshfield Door Systems 710 4 3.99% 744 4 6.45%
: Wick Building Systems 450 5 2.53% 705 5 8.11%
i J Total 9,004 50.58% 7,212 62.48%
N
L]
{‘ Source: Marshiield Area Chamber of Commerce and Industry
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Schedule 16
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
FULL TIME-EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
tast Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year )
Function / Program jogs 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
General Govermment
Mayor 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20
Adrministrator ) 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Assessor 4.00 4.00 400 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4,00 4,00
Clerk 2.00 2,00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Finance / Treasurer 7.80 7.80 7.80 7.60 6.60 6.80 6.30 5.30 5.30 530
Information Systems : 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Municipal Court 0.75 0.75 0.75 075 0.75 .75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Public Safety 7 .
Police 52.00 52.00 52.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 45.00
* Fire and Rescue 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 28.00 27.30 27.30 27.30 27.30 21.30
Emergency Medical Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.00 7.70 7.70 7.70 7.70 7.70
Building Services and Inspection 6.00 8.00 6.00 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Pulic Works
Public Works Administration 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2,00 2,00 2.00 _ 200
Engineering 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6,00 6.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 6.00
Strest Services 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 34.00 34.00 34.00
Wastewater Utility 1250 12.50 12.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50
Health and Human Services
Cemetery 200 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 200 2.00 2.00 2.00
Culture, Recreation and Education )
Libwary 16.49 16.49 16.49 18.00 20.33 19.30 19.23 19.48 19.48 19.48
Parks and Recreation © 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 12.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00
Conservation and Development )
Planning and Economic Development 0.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Total 198.74 189.74 199.74 203.05 204.38 204,35 202.98 201.23 201.23 193.23
Source: City Administrator’s Office.
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S R Schedule 17
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Year
1908 1959 2000 2001 002 2008 2004 2005 2006 2007
Function / Program
General Govemment
Building Services and Inspection : . :
Permits issued 1,051 1,098 1,039 1,138 1,284 1,259 1,193 1,077 1,118 1,004
Finance .
Pet licences issusd 1,638 1,718 1,611 1,769 1,807 1,758 1,769 1,744 1,598 1,618
W-2 employees 554 544 565 546 544 541 554 537 483 446
Public Satety
Police
Number of Arrests / Citations / Wamings 3614 3,610 3,748 3,546 3,548 9,394 8,195 7619 8,749 7,436
Fire and Rescue
Number of call responses 409 606 629 336 n 289 212 254 199 214
Number of inspections conducted 2,067 2,005 2,139 2,108 2,156 2,183 2,186 2,331 2,355 2,536
Emergency Medical Services
MNumber of trips 1,890 1,842 1,997 1,951 2,011 2,003 2,045 2,202 2,282 2,454
Public Works
Wastewater Utility
Monthly Average Service Connections 7,313 7,313 7,400 7400 7,631 7,631 7,631 7,781 8,015 8,112
Daily Average Treatment in Gallons 3,296,000 3,290,000 2,600,000 . 2,600,000 3,600,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 2,700,000 2,570,000 2,966,000
Water UHility .
Service Connecticns 7,184 7,184 7,184 7,392 7,429 7,433 7433 7,599 7,662 7,695
Daily Average Consumption in Gaflons 2,232,000 2,232,000 2,232,000 1,937,315 1,918,443 1,918,443 1,865,923 1,304,019 1,867,000 1,847,000
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
‘ Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sched_ula i3

. Fiscal Year
1895 1088 200 2001 2002 2003 2008 2005 2006 I
Eunction / Program
Public Safety
Polics
Number of Statiens 1 1 1 1 1 1 i i 1 i
Number of enforcament units . 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Fire and Rescue :
Number of Stations : -1 1 i i i i i 1 1 1
Emergency Medical Services
Number of Ambulances 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Public Works
Street Services
Miles of Streets 120 120 120 133 133 135 135 a8 138 38
Number of Street Lights 1,264 1,204 1,284 1,268 1,282 1,340 1,408 1,874 1,985 1,989
Miles of Storms Sewers 58 58 B0 4] 65 69 69 74 75 75
Wastewater Utility .
Miles of Sanitary Sewer 125 125 130 130 130 130 130 133 133 133
Number of treatment plants i i i i 1 i . 1 i i 1
Maximum daily capacity of freatment plant in gaflons 11,000,000 11,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000  28,000000 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000
Water Utility .
Miles of Water Mains 129 129 129 133 133 133 133 136 141 141
Number of reaiment plants i 1 1 1 1 i i 1 1 1
Number of fire hydrants 723 723 723 97 806 823 842 844 892 B32
Maximum daily capacity of plant in gallons 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,300,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4,800,000
Culture, Recreation and Education
' Parks and Racreation
Gommunity Centers 1 1 i i § 1 1 2 2 2
Parks 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 17 18 18
Park acreage 323 323 3 323 350 380 380 256 288 288
. Swimming Pools t i 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Tennis/raquetball courts
outdoor lighted 10 10 10 18 18 18 i8 18 18 18
indoor tennis 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
racquethall 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Zoos 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
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